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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the
“Company” together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”)), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 (the “Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group was principally engaged in the budget hotel
operations, hotel consultations and management services in China.
The financial performance of hotel operations of the Group during the
Year remains comparable to that of previous year. However, as the
amount of impairment of assets of the Group during the Year recorded
a significant year-on-year decrease, the net loss of the Group narrowed
during the Year. In addition, benefiting from the increase in market
demand resulted from the commencement of operation of the Nanshan
section of Shenzhen Metro in the third quarter of 2016, together with
the increasingly fierce competition in the hotel market in the vicinity of
Nanshan, in response to the market changes, the Group began the
renovation work of Nanshan Hotel last year, which was completed in the
third quarter of the Year. Although the Group recorded a year-on-year
decrease in revenue during the Year due to renovation, the renovation
is expected to bring long-term growth in earnings of the Group, thereby
enhancing the Group’s performance.

During the Year, the management continued to carry out cautious
measures to manage the Group’s business. In respect of principal
businesses, most of the lease agreements of hotel properties were
renewed during the Year, the Group will continue to monitor its
needs and consider renovation for the other remaining hotels if the
project investment returns are greater than costs, in order to provide
strong support for sustainable business development of the Group.
Furthermore, apart from hotel renovation projects disclosed before and
enhancement in development of financial business through acquisitions,
the management continues to broaden the principal business streams
of the Group during the Years, such as strengthening the development
of hotel consultation and management and other services, to increase
revenue of the Group, so as to maximize revenue of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®|E

PROSPECTS

Despite keen competition in the domestic hotel market, with the domestic
economic growth and changes in the macroeconomic structure, the
service industry has been improving year by year. It is expected that
the domestic hotel service industry will maintain its good performance
in the foreseeable future. In the next few years, the Group will ride on
this wave to consolidate its existing operation and continue to develop
its hotel-related principal business to strive for enhancement in service
standards of the Group. The Group will conduct optimization in internal
procedures and enhance management efficiency to regulate and plan
for future development strategies with innovative thinking, so as to fully
stimulate and enhance the potential and intrinsic values of corporate
resources. In the coming year, the Group will continue to develop its hotel
business operation and actively seek for other investment and business
development opportunities to expand the streams of principal business,
in the hope of bringing greater value to the shareholders of the Company.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Finally, | would like to thank our employees for their dedication,
independent directors for their guidance and suggestions, hotel
customers of the Group for their patronage, and shareholders for their
confidence in the management and their support. | am grateful to
everyone who contributes to the success of the Group.

Ye Shusheng
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
On Behalf of the Board

7 March 2018

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
EBBREEERBR AR

RS

HENBI B IS T I5 B F AR (EREEER
RERER REQEBERELR(C RBES
BB FRFNER - FARTE R AR E R
JERRFBE B EEFRLFORR - NEBERK
RERRZEMBY  ERZERALENER
o BERRBEAERN 2 EBAB RS
AREBORFBAKE - REFAEEITFHEBRERN
MR RIRTTEIRAE - LB BAERE N
HREICERKRN BRI  RERZEAEY
RIAGEERNEEMAERBE - I —F AR
SERR T HERRBEEHERI - EGREE
SREMBREREBEREE  MIRIEE
BRR - BRARRRAEE SEE -

&l

Ri& - HBRHAE RARENKINEH TR
WET HEIFEMET RHEENERN
BYEER ABEASEBEENES - URBE
BIRERE ) R A TSR BCR A

H8 4
HITEBERITBALE,
REREZS
—F-)\F=HtH



Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS AND OPERATIONAL REVIEW
Business and operational review

The Group is principally engaged in budget hotel operations and provision
of hotel consultancy and hotel management services. For the financial
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has 3 leased-and-operated
hotels under operation. Apart from hotel operations business, the Group
is also developing comprehensive licensed financial services and asset
management business in line with our existing development strategy.

Hotel Operations

Revenue from hotel operations mainly included hotel room rentals
and revenue from sales of hotel membership cards. Revenue was
HK$16,281,691 for the financial year ended 31 December 2017,
representing a decrease of approximately 7.8% as compared with
revenue of HK$17,654,630 for the same period of last financial year.
The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the hotel renovation
carried out by the Group during the period, resulting in a decrease in
the number of available rooms and occupancy rate. The renovation
has been substantially completed in the third quarter of the Year. In
the fourth quarter of the Year and the foreseeable future, revenue from
hotel operations will increase with the gradual recovery in the number of
available rooms, improvement in room services and adjustment in room
rates.

On the other hand, as mentioned in the Company’s announcements
in the last financial year dated 21 April 2016 and 20 October 2016
respectively, the Group entered into a memorandum of understanding in
relation to the proposed acquisition of 51% interests in a five star hotel
which is located in Sichuan Province, the PRC. This potential acquisition
will be in line with the Group’s intention to achieve breakthroughs amid
the long term depression of budget hotel business and eventually bring
returns to shareholders, in the event it materializes. As at the end of the
Year, the Group was still in negotiation of the proposed acquisition, no
legally binding agreement had been entered into. Should there be further
progress, the Group will release announcement thereon as and when
appropriate.

The Group will continue to look for investment and enhancement
opportunities and explore new high-class hotel business in the PRC,
Hong Kong or overseas, so as to optimize the overall hotel assets
structure and improve efficiency.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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HOTELS UNDER OPERATIONS
Nanshan Hotel

Nanshan Hotel is located at Nanshan Road with 192 rooms and is a
flagship hotel of the Group. It contributed most of the revenue of the
Group. For the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the revenue
of Nanshan Hotel has decreased by approximately 7.6%. During the
current financial year, comprehensive renovation works were carried
out in Nanshan Hotel and were completed in September 2017. During
the renovation period, revenue of Nanshan Hotel was affected to some
extent. However, as the renovation works have been completed, the
Group believes Nanshan Hotel’s service quality will be upgraded, thus
this would attract more customers and bring greater revenue to the
Group.

Luohu Hotel

Luohu Hotel is located at the thriving financial center of Luohu District
in Shenzhen, which enjoys convenient transport access (only about 5
minutes’ driving distance to Luohu Checkpoint and Convention and
Exhibition Center). The major part of its revenue is based on domestic
travellers making short trips to Hong Kong. The aged decoration of the
hotel brings a negative impact of the attractiveness of the hotel on the
customers and thus revenue of the hotel decreased by approximately
3.1% during the financial year. As the prime location of Luohu Hotel will
provide us a good customer base, the Group will actively review the
operation strategies and policies of Luohu Hotel including considering
small decoration or renovation to increase revenue.

Baoan Hotel

Baoan Hotel is located in Baoan District of Shenzhen, which, on a
geographical and environmental basis, is situated at a less prime location.
During the Year, internal decoration of the hotel showed signs of aging
which affected the possibility of leasing and some rooms had to terminate
leasing for refurbishments. The revenue of Baoan Hotel decreased by
approximately 16.7% as compared with the last financial year. In addition,
as some new hotels nearby have been completed and put into operation
successively, the Group expects Baoan Hotel will continue to be faced
with significant challenges in the foreseeable future. In view of this, the
Group has reached agreement with the owner to renew the lease with a
relatively longer lease term, providing an important fundamental condition
for the Group to consider comprehensive renovation for Baoan Hotel
shortly, so as to enhance its competitiveness and bring considerable
returns for the long-term investments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL SERVICES AND ASSET
MANAGEMENT BUSINESS

The Group is developing the financial services and asset management
business to seize the respective promising business opportunities,
and to achieve the potential synergy of the hotel operations and asset
management business as soon as possible.

The Group obtained a Money Lenders Licence last year which has been
renewed for a term until the end of 2018. The Group have also submitted
an application to the Securities and Futures Commission for the licences
of Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts) and
Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”),
which is still pending approval.

Moreover, the Group is now seeking to acquire suitable financial
institutions, asset or fund management corporations, with a view to
expanding the financial services segment of the Group. As mentioned
in the announcements dated 24 May 2017, 8 August 2017, 29 August
2017, 29 September 2017, 24 October 2017 and 22 November 2017,
Perfect Peace Global Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with ZhongHua
Financial Holdings Limited, the vendor, in relation to the purchase of the
entire issued share capital of ZhongHua Finance Asset Management
Co., Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong licensed to conduct
Type 9 regulated activities under the SFO, subject to independent
shareholders’ approval. This potential acquisition will be in line with the
Group’s intention to achieve breakthroughs in the long-term depression
of budget hotel business and eventually bring reasonable returns to
shareholders, in the event it materializes.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group has recorded a revenue of HK$16,281,691, compared
with HK$17,654,630 of last financial year, representing a decrease of
approximately 7.8%. Due to the decreases in provisions and write-offs,
the Group recorded a total comprehensive loss of HK$46,610,214 for
the financial year ended 31 December 2017, representing a decrease
of HK$52,232,046 or approximately 52.8% as compared with the total
comprehensive loss of HK$98,842,260 for the last financial year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The following table shows the key information of the total of the Group’s
leased-and-operated hotels for the financial years ended 31 December
2016 and 2017 respectively.

TR AEB 2 HLHEELLHEDRIREE
TE-RERZE—+tF+-_A=+—HItH
BREEZEEER -

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=1t—HLEE

2017 2016 % change
—E—tE  —T-AF AAHEH

Total FEET
Total available room nights an] KRR R E 103,929 113,008 (8.0%)
Average occupancy rate FEYAEE 70.87% 74.85% (5.3%)
ARR (RMB)* FHER(ARET)” 200.7 177.8 12.8%
RevPAR (RMB)* FHEREERA(ARET) 142.2 133.1 6.8%

*

ARR: the total room revenue of all hotels divided by the total occupied room
nights

# RevPAR: the total room revenue of all hotels divided by the total available
room nights
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Operating Costs

The total operating costs decreased by HK$55,404,263, or
approximately 49.0%, from HK$113,139,018 for the same period of
last year to HK$57,734,755 for the financial year ended 31 December
2017. The decrease in operating expenses was due to several write-offs
in prior year. Operating lease expenses increased by HK$2,871,971, or
approximately 24.4%, due to the reversal of the effective rental payable
accrued for previous years upon the termination of the leases in Buiji
Hotel and Huizhou Hotel in prior year. Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment increased by HK$562,966 due to depreciation of leasehold
improvements upon completion of renovation projects of Nanshan Hotel.

HE-ZT—+tF+-A=Z+—HILTBFE -
ﬂm“ﬁ$$£¢ﬂ%2ﬂmwom%mm
155,404,263 JT 2k #949.0% £ 57,734,755%8
TC o FEERSOR A TR LS BUEMETE B
FrE - & E M E R 38 512,871,971 T2 4Y
24.4% @ WIHREEAFERKEREMSE
ﬁEME EifE# AR FENEAERES
SKIBFTSIB - MWZE - BE K& BT EE N
5&9%%E&$%nWWME§ﬁI&%ﬁ
EYEREHEBINEME -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—-HLEE

2017 2016 % change
—E—+tF ZE—RF AoLLE

Operating lease expenses LEHERY 14,724,858 11,832,887 24.4%
Depreciation of property, Yz - BEMERETE

plant and equipment 4,773,982 4,211,016 13.4%

Employee benefit expenses EERHNFHX 21,604,443 21,591,413 0.1%

Utilities NG9 1,202,004 1,317,288 (8.8%)

Other operating expenses Hbg Rz 13,029,468 73,706,414 (82.3%)

Amortisation of other assets EHh B E R 2,400,000 480,000 400%

57,734,755 113,139,018

FINANCE COST

The finance costs increased by HK$1,384,682 as compared with the
last financial year. It mainly represented the interest expenses for the
convertible bonds and shareholders’ loans.

BbE R ANER _E— BB E S 001,384,68278 7T
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group mainly financed its operations and
expansion with its own working capital generated internally, shareholders’
loans of a principal amount of HK$16,500,000 which were unsecured
and interest-bearing at 8% per annum and would be repayable in 2020,
and fund raising activities.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank balances and cash of
HK$7,877,594 (31 December 2016: HK$10,100,000). Gearing ratio is
calculated as the amount of interest-bearing borrowings divided by total
equity. The gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing total borrowing
by total equity, as of 31 December 2017 was 76.5% (31 December
2016: 414.4%).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES,
AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

As mentioned in the Company’s announcements dated 21 April 2016
and 20 October 2016 respectively, during the last financial year, the
Group has entered into a memorandum of understanding in relation to
the proposed acquisition of 51%-interests in a hotel located in Sichuan
Province, the PRC. The Group has made the first deposit payment of
approximately HK$23,988,000 in mid-May 2016. After the reporting
period, the Group demanded refund and the deposit was refunded
in February 2018. The Group is still in negotiation on the proposed
acquisition, and no legally binding agreement has been entered into.
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Moreover, as mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 24
May 2017, Perfect Peace Global Limited (“Perfect Peace”), which is a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a memorandum
of understanding in relation to the proposed acquisition of two licensed
corporations, which are licensed to conduct Type 6 and Type 9 regulated
activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws
of Hong Kong) (“SFO”) respectively. The consideration of the proposed
acquisition shall be satisfied by issuance of new ordinary share(s) of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company (the “Shares”) at
an issue price to be determined between the parties. On 8 August
2017, Perfect Peace entered into a sale and purchase agreement with,
among others, ZhongHua Financial Holdings Limited in relation to the
purchase of the entire issued share capital of ZhongHua Finance Asset
Management Co., Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
licensed to conduct Type 9 regulated activities under the SFO, subject to
independent shareholders’ approval. Please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 24 May 2017, 8 August 2017, 29 August 2017,
29 September 2017, 24 October 2017 and 22 November 2017 for
further details.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2017,
there was no significant investment held or material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries or affiliated companies by the Company, and the
Company had no future plan for material investments or capital assets.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s majority of the assets and
liabilities, and income and expenses were denominated in Renminbi and
Hong Kong Dollar. The Group had no significant exposure to fluctuations
in exchange rates or under foreign exchange contracts, interest, currency
swaps or other financial derivatives.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Amount of HK$51,000,000 of convertible bonds of the Group were
converted into 54,838,708 Shares during the year ended 31 December
2017. The total number of the issued Shares of the Company was
448,363,708 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: 393,525,000).

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil).
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at 7 March 2018,
being the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report
for the purpose of ascertaining information contained herein (the “Latest
Practicable Date”).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had 56 employees as at 31 December 2017 (31 December
2016: 78 employees). Remuneration is determined with reference to
market terms and performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance will be
paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their contributions.
Other benefits include contributions to retirement scheme. Regarding the
determination of emoluments payable to Directors, the basis has been
set out in the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any charges on its
assets (2016: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no material capital
commitments (2016: Nil). As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no
material contingent liabilities (2016: Nil).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total operating lease
commitments of approximately HK$28,988,593 (31 December 2016:
HK$31,368,933). The operating lease commitments are mainly related
to the rental for hotel operations and headquarter. For the year ended 31
December 2017, there was no significant movement in operating lease
contracts of the Group, and the operating lease commitments decreased
as they were fulfilled by operating lease expenses.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold,
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2017. For details of the amendment to the terms
and conditions of convertible bonds issued by the Company, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 14 June 2017 and
15 June 2017 respectively. An aggregate amount of HK$51,000,000 of
convertible bonds of the Group were converted into 54,838,708 Shares
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Save as the above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
issued or granted any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights or exercised any conversion or subscription rights under any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

USE OF PROCEEDS IN FUND RAISING
ACTIVITIES

Pursuant to the open offer of the Company which had become
unconditional on 9 October 2015 (the “Open Offer”), the Company
had allotted and issued 78,704,999 Shares at the subscription price
of HK$0.80 each, with the net proceeds raised being approximately
HK$63,000,000. The proceeds raised were expected to be applied as
investment funds and general working capital of the Group. As at 31
December 2017, the net proceeds from the Open Offer had been fully
utilised. The following table sets forth the application of the net proceeds
from the Open Offer:
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In addition, on 25 May 2016, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with Sheng Yuan Securities Limited (the “Placing Agent”)
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to issue and the
Placing Agent has conditionally agreed to procure, on a best effort basis,
not less than six placees to subscribe for the convertible bonds with
an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$51,000,000 at the placing
price, being the face value of the principal amount of such convertible
bonds. Pursuant to the terms of the convertible bonds, for so long as any
convertible bond remains outstanding, if Mr. Ding Yifan ceases to own
and/or control directly or indirectly or in combination (through controlled
entities) at least 30% of the voting rights of the Company (after taking
into account any dilution effect by issuance of any new Shares by the
Company, including but not limited to the issuance of the conversion
Shares), the majority bondholders will be entitled to demand immediate
repayment of the convertible bonds held by all holders at its principal
amount then outstanding, together with any accrued and unpaid interest
and premium under the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds
calculated up to and excluding the date of payment. The placing was
completed on 14 June 2016. On 14 June 2017, the Company and all of
the holders of the convertible bonds have entered into a supplemental
deed, such that the outstanding principal amount of the convertible
bonds shall be automatically redeemed on the 2nd anniversary of the
date of the issue of the convertible bonds. On 15 September 2017 and
29 November 2017 respectively, all convertible bonds have been fully
converted into Shares. The proceeds raised would be applied as general
working capital and used for the operation of the money lending business
of the Company until the Company has identified suitable acquisition
target(s). For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 25 May 2016, 14 June 2016, 13 February 2017, 14 June 2017
and 15 June 2017 respectively and the next day disclosure return
submitted by the Company on 15 September 2017 and 29 November
2017 respectively.
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The following is a summary of the actual use of proceeds for the
amounts of approximately HK$50,000,000 (after deduction of 2% for
the commission for the placing agent) after the placing of the convertible
bonds:

LWTARETBEBRESEMEREY
50,000,000/ 7T (£ ER2% AL ERIE/ME ) 2
ERREHE

2017
—E—+F
HK$
BT
General working capital —MREEES

— Operation (Hotel operations and — BRI EE RS BIRIEER)
financial services business) 36,590,000
— Hotel investment and enhancement —BIEREREB 8,000,000
— Interest paid on convertible bonds due —F|Ef AR ES 2 B FIE 5,410,000
50,000,000

Up to the date of this report, suitable borrower of the sum is yet to be
found. No money has yet to be spent in the money lending business.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

There is no non-adjusting event after the reporting period which would
have material impact to the Group.

COMPLIANCE CONFIRMATION

The Board of Directors confirms that throughout the year, the Group has
conformed in all material respects with all the requirements under relevant
statutes, rules, standards, codes, licences in respect of its operation,
financial reporting, or disclosures in Hong Kong or other applicable
jurisdictions.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
STAKEHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Group recognises and respects: (i) the importance of environmental
protection; (i) the lawful rights of stakeholders, broadly to be categorised
as employees, customers, suppliers, members of communities, and (iii)
corporate social responsibilities of the Group as a member of the society.
A specific report on these issues is covered in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of this Annual Report.
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The following set forth the biographical details of the Directors and the
members of the senior management of the Company as at the Latest
Practicable Date.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ye Shusheng (H#4)

Mr. Ye Shusheng (“Mr. Ye”), aged 43, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer with effect from 15 December
2017. Mr. Ye graduated with a master’s degree in applied economics
from Xian Jiaotong University of China in 2004.

Upon graduation, Mr. Ye worked as the vice head of the Shenzhen
Metro Group Company Limited. Mr. Ye also served as the deputy finance
controller of Shenzhen Tempus Global Travel Holding Limited, a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (the “SZSE”) (stock code:
300178) and the vice president and the financial controller of Tempus
Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (stock code: 6880). Mr. Ye is currently a director of Suzhou
China Create Special Material Company Limited (% 1 &} Al Z7 7Y 34 #L A%
P EBR A T]), a company listed on the SZSE (stock code: 002290).

Huang Yun (EE)

Mr. Huang Yun (“Mr. Huang”), aged 56, was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 25 June 2015. Mr. Huang is a director
and owns 10% equity interest of China Medical Overseas Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. He is also the chairman of #7t
R (AL F)REABIREL AR (transliterated as “Xin Jie Zhi Yuan (Beijing)
Investment Co., Ltd.”), an investment holding company holding interest
in a chain of restaurants in the PRC. Mr. Huang has over 18 years of
business experience, including investments on real estate, finance and
securities, major chain catering enterprises and extensive experience in
operation and investment management.

Dai Lifeng (&3 1)

Mr. Dai Lifeng (“Mr. Dai”), aged 34, was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 12 April 2016. He has about twelve years of
experience in investment management. He is currently the chairman of
Udcon International Health Technology (Beijing) Limited (& i& BT B8 B &
BRI (dE ) B BR A a)), an executive director and the chief executive
officer of UniNova (Tianjin) Limited (84 # 2= (K2) AR A 7)), and a vice
president of Oxford MEStar Ltd.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Lu Zefeng (BEIE1£)

Mr. Lu Zefeng (“Mr. Lu”), aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive
Director with effect from 15 December 2016. Mr. Lu obtained a
bachelor’s degree in law from East China University of Political Science
and Law in 1988. Mr. Lu also obtained a master’s degree in law and
a doctorate degree in law from Wuhan University in 1995 and 1998
respectively.

Mr. Lu taught at Zhejiang University during the period from 1988 to
1992. Mr. Lu also served as a postdoctoral researcher in the area of
international finance at the Postdoctoral Program of Applied Economics in
Fudan University during the period from 1998 to 2000. During the period
from October 2000 to May 2016, Mr. Lu worked at the China Securities
Regulatory Commission and held several positions including, the head
of legal department and the head of institution regulatory department.
Mr. Lu also worked as an assistant to director and deputy director of the
Shandong branch and a deputy officer of the listed company regulatory
department.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Tso Hon Sai Bosco (E£H)

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (“Mr. Tso”), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect from
25 June 2015. He is currently a partner with Messrs. Tso Au Yim &
Yeung, Solicitors and has been a Hong Kong practising solicitor since
1990. Mr. Tso received his Bachelor of Laws degree from King’s College
London.

From November 2000 to September 2004, Mr. Tso worked as an
independent non-executive director of Emperor Entertainment Group
Limited (stock code: 8078) which was later renamed as Dragonlott
Entertainment Group Limited in April 2010 and China 3D Digital
Entertainment Limited in September 2010. From July 2003 to November
2012, Mr. Tso worked as an independent non-executive director of
Fortuna International Holdings Limited (stock code: 530) which was
later renamed as Goldin Financial Holdings Limited in May 2009. From
May 2005 to September 2005, Mr. Tso worked as an independent non-
executive director of Magician Industries (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
526) which was later renamed as Lisi Group (Holdings) Limited in August
2010. In December 2006, he worked as an executive director of Tiger
Tech Holdings Limited; from December 2006 to June 2007, he worked as
an executive director and the company secretary of Tiger Tech Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8046) which was later renamed as Heng Xin China
Holdings Limited in November 2008. From August 2007 to August 2012,
Mr. Tso worked as an independent non-executive director of Rising
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 1004) which was later
renamed as China Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited in February
2015. From May 2007 to July 2015, Mr. Tso worked as an independent
non-executive director of Neolink Cyber Technology (Holding) Limited
(stock code: 8116), which was later renamed as Global Resources
Development (Holding) Limited in May 2009, China Public Healthcare
(Holding) Limited in December 2009 and China Fortune Investments
(Holdings) Limited in June 2012. Mr. Tso has also been an independent
non-executive director of First Natural Foods Holdings Limited, which
was later renamed as Imperial Pacific International Holdings Limited in
May 2014 (stock code: 1076) since November 2013.
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Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (Z %)

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (“Mr. Wong”), aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 November 2016.
Mr. Wong has over 27 years of experience in venture capital, corporate
finance, business development and general management. Mr. Wong is
the president and group chief financial officer of KVB Kunlun Holdings
Limited (“KVB”) and is the chief financial officer and the company
secretary of KVB’s group company, KVB Kunlun Financial Group Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6877).
Mr. Wong is also an independent non-executive director of Renheng
Enterprise Holdings Limited (stock code: 3628), HongDa Financial
Holding Limited (stock code: 1822), Progressive Path Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1581), China Regenerative Medicine International
Limited (stock code: 8158) and Common Splendor International Health
Industry Group Limited (stock code: 286), whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Wong has served as the board director at Adamas Finance Asia
Limited since 2008, a company listed on the London Stock Exchange
(LSE stock code: ADAM), and served as its chief financial officer from
May 2008 to October 2011. Mr. Wong also served as the chief financial
officer of the Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology Research
Institute and the vice president of Vertex Management (HK) previously.

Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in business administration from
The University of Hong Kong, a master’s degree of science in investment
management from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
and a master’s degree of science in electronic engineering from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is also
the charter-holder of the Institute of Chartered Financial Analysts. He is
now the president of the Hong Kong University Graduates Association,
the deputy chairman of the HKU Convocation, the court member of
The University of Hong Kong, a committee member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants Hong Kong, and the member of the
Twelfth Shandong Province Committee of Chinese people’s Political
Consultative Conference in Shandong Province.

Wong Yiu Kit Ernest(E2£¢)
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEEZEREFE

Cheng Chai Fu (BEE)

Mr. Cheng Chai Fu (“Mr. Cheng”), aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 9 March 2017. Mr.
Cheng graduated from Victoria University of Wellington, New Zealand
with a bachelor’s degree in commerce and administration in 1990
and obtained a Master of Business Administration from Murray State
University, Kentucky of the United States of America in 2000. Mr. Cheng
has been an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand. Mr. Cheng has
extensive experience in the areas of auditing, accounting and company
secretarial work.

From March 2010 to January 2015, Mr. Cheng worked as the company
secretary of Hanergy Thin Film Power Group Limited (stock code: 566).
He also worked as an in-house company secretary of HongDa Financial
Holding Limited (stock code: 1822) from January 2015 to December
2015. Mr. Cheng has also served as the company secretary of China
Regenerative Medicine International Limited (stock code: 8158) since
January 2016.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Chung Tin Yan (8 X 87)

Mr. Chung Tin Yan (“Mr. Chung”), aged 34, was appointed as
the financial controller and the company secretary with effect from
13 February 2017. Mr. Chung graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a degree of bachelor of arts in accountancy in 2005.
He has over 11 years of experience in corporate finance, investment,
auditing and accounting. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chung held
various senior positions in the management team of the Chief Operating
Officer with Hutchison Telecommunications Hong Kong Holdings Limited
(stock code: 0215). He has also worked as an audit manager at Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu. Mr. Chung also has extensive experience in fund
raising activities in Hong Kong and in the United States.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Company is committed to ensuring a high standard of corporate
governance in the interests of the shareholders and devotes considerable
effort to maintain high level of business ethics and corporate governance
practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout the financial year
ended 31 December 2017, except for certain deviations as specified with
considered reasons for such deviations as explained below. The Board
will keep reviewing and updating such practices from time to time to
ensure compliance with legal and commercial standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies, monitoring
performance and managing risks of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”). At the same time, it also has the duty to
enhance the effectiveness of the corporate governance practices of the
Group. Under the Board, there are 3 board committees, namely the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination committee.
All these committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their
respective terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising certain
functions of the senior management.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors and relevant employees who, because of office
or employment, are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information in relation to the Company’s securities. The Company had
made specific enquiry to all the directors (the “Directors”) and such-
relevant employees and they confirmed compliance with the Model
Code throughout the period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017.
No incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company during this
period.

ARABBATRREZLEER - UWRER
R - WENERSKENHRIETRER
BIRTR

TEERER

REBEE_ZT—+F+_A=+—HILHMEF
B ARRIBEETEEHRMERSMBERARE
FEMARAT EMRA DM MAHERE
ATAIRAERERRE ([REERTA) - 1
TX@EEZETERMAREZ RGN - EF
SREETRRN NEMZETR - AR
EZREVTSE R

EXEETIRREARARENMBAR (BRI
S ZREHIE RREERERER - [
B EFgNAEERALAEELEE LGRS
MO -EFZG@ETA-—AEFZES  HIEX
ZEg FMZEELREZBE - MA%S
ZEEURBREFEAZBESERTERS
BE UHhEESEBESMEEE2E TR

/|

BFETESRZ 2BETA

i

AEBERA MRS+ AT EMEITA
ESETESFR G 2IRESTR([IRETR D IE
REER([EF ) REHEEE (RBERBA
A BEER1S A B A R BB 5 < 1 AR M A H
BIETREFRZNETTH - ARFEAE
BEELZEEREBFLHARSH  MKE
EHAR-_ZT—tF—A—BHE-_T—tF
TZA=T—HHEA-—EETRETH - K
RAIRZHAEAY BEREATERNFE

Annual Report 2017
— T EER

23



24

Corporate Governance Report
SEERBE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Board comprises seven Directors as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ye Shusheng

(Appointed with effect from 15 December 2017)
Mr. Huang Yun
Mr. Dai Lifeng

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lu Zefeng
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Chai Fu (Appointed with effect from 9 March 2017)
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest

List of directors and their roles and functions are available on the
websites of Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). Biographical details of the Directors as at the Latest
Practicable Date are set out in the section of “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 18 to 22. There are no
family or other material relationships among members of the Board.

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the overall
strategies and policies of the Company. Apart from the regular board
meetings of the year, the Board also meets on other occasions when a
Board-level decision on a particular matter is required.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, management provided all
members of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail.

Day-to-day operational responsibilities are specifically delegated by the
Board to the management under the leadership of the chief executive
officer. Major matters include implementation of the strategies and
decisions approved by the Board and the management assumes full
responsibility to the Board for operations of the Group.

According to code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, a notice of at least
14 days should be given for a regular board meeting to give all directors
an opportunity to attend. Due to the practical scheduling issues and with
no objections from any Director, a shorter reasonable notice was given to
the Directors for a number of regular meetings held in 2017.

Meanwhile, according to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code,
independent non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors should
attend general meetings. At the annual general meeting held on 26 May
2017, all the independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Directors were presented to enable the Board to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders of the Company, except,
Mr. Min Zhi Dong, Mr. Lu Zefeng and Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco who were
unable to attend due to their other business commitments.
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The Company will arrange to furnish all Directors with appropriate
information on all general meetings and take all reasonable measures to
arrange the schedule that all Directors can attend the general meetings in
order to develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

The Board will continue to review the corporate governance status of the
Company from time to time and make any necessary changes to comply

with the CG Code.
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The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings, audit &ZEFRHZEZE_Z—+F+_A=+— EI LEF
committee meetings, remuneration committee meetings, nomination EEBEEE &%  EXEZE99E FWE
committee meetings and general meetings during the year ended E&&% - E4ZEegz=REAe HE
31 December 2017 is set out in the following table: REEREA T ¢
Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee
Name of directors Board Meetings  Audit Committee Meeting Meeting  General Meeting
ESf? EZeER ENZESER iHzge % RtzEgEE RExE
(attendance/total no. ~ (attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.  (attendance/total no.
of meetings held  of meetings held ~ of meetings held) of meetings held) of meetings held)
(i rE,/ (HErg/ (HErg/ (HErg/ (HiErE/
STERENY)  BOCRMRE)  RORRANE)  EMes4N®)  RAgEENE)
Executive Directors HiEE
Mr. Ye Shusheng HEERE

(appointed with effect from (BZE-tE+-RTREREZD)

15 December 2017) NATER NATER NA TER NA TEA NA TER
Mr. Huang Yun EERE 5/5 N/A TR NATER N/A T8 1
Mr. Dai Lifeng HUBLE 6/7 NA TER NATER NA TR N
Mr. Min Zhi Dong (appointed with RERAE

effect fom 1 Apr 2017 and resigned (=5t EMA-BREZf

with effect from 1 March 2018) TA=5-/\F=f-BEEf) 33 NATER NATER NA &R o
Mr. Wy Li in RUHRE

(resiqned with effect from (BZE-tET-R=THEEE)

30 November 2017) 56 N/A NER NATER NA TEA 1
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
M. Lu Zefeng 13- 67 NATER NATER NA MEE o
M. Chung Wai Man BNt

(appointed with effect from (BZE-tECAT=RREZR

13 February 2017 and Ia_e—t¢+ B=TRERT)

resigned with effect from

30 November 2017) 56 N/A MER NATER NA TEA 1
Independent Non-executive BUHH1EE

Directors
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco EgEst 6/6 22 7/8 33 01
Mr. Cheng Chal Fu PEErk

(appointed with effect from (BZF-tF-ANBREZRR)

9 March 2017) i 22 i 2/2 1
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit ERREE mn 22 99 44 N
Mr. Leung Su Hong PhETE

(resigned with effect from (BB tEZANBERF)

9March 2017) NA TER NATER 202 2/2 NA TER
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All Directors were provided with details of agenda items for decisions
making with reasonable notice and invited to raise any matters in the
agenda of Board Meeting. Directors have access to the advice and
services of the company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that
the Board procedures are complied with and advising the Board on
compliance matters. Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of the
Board committees are kept by the company secretary and are opened for
inspection as requested by the Directors. During the year, the Board was
given sufficient time to review and approve minutes of Board meetings
and meetings of Board Committees. The Directors were also provided
with access to independent professional advice, where necessary, in
carrying out their obligations as the Directors of the Company, at the
expense of the Company. Directors who are considered to have conflict
of interests or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to
be discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting and would
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

All Directors assume the responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company for the well-being and success of the Company. They are
aware of their duties to act in good faith and in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board is responsible for maintaining proper accounting records so
as to enable the Directors to monitor the Company’s overall financial
position. The Board updates shareholders on the operations and financial
position of the Group through, interim and annual results announcements
as well as the publication of timely announcements of other matters as
prescribed by the relevant rules and regulations.

The Company has three independent non-executive Directors, at
least one of whom has appropriate financial management expertise, in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, newly appointed
Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting and
shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Every Director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Company had
arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against
the Directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision of A.2.1. of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman
of the Company (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive officer of the
Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”) should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separated to ensure a clear division
between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the Company’s
business. The separation ensures a balance of power and authority so
that power is not concentrated.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Wu Li Xin and Mr. Ye
Shusheng were appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and their role is
to oversee the overall management of the Company for the period from
1 January 2017 to 30 November 2017 and from 15 December 2017 to
31 December 2017 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no individual was appointed as
the Chairman. The role of the Chairman has been performed collectively
by all executive Directors of the Company.

The Board considers this arrangement allows contributions from all
Directors with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity and
implementation of the Company’s policy and strategies and in the interest
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Nevertheless, the Company will continue to look for suitable candidate
to fill the role of the Chairman and will make necessary arrangement
pursuant to the requirement under A.2.1 of the CG Code as and when
necessary.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
specific term of one year or three years but subject to termination in
certain circumstance as stipulated in the relevant service contracts. At
each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being
(if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one third) will retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting
at least once every one year or three years. Any Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
members after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed as an addition to the existing
board shall hold office only until the next annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties and
has adopted the written terms of reference on its corporate governance
functions. The duties of the Board in respect of the corporate governance
functions include:

(i)  developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(i)  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and the
Directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Since 2017 and up to the date of this report, the Board has performed
the corporate governance duties in accordance with its terms of
reference.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. The Company considered diversity of board members can
be achieved through consideration of a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be made upon the merits and contributions that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee of the Board was set up on 22 June 2011
(the “Remuneration Committee”) to oversee the remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management. The terms of reference
is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and the senior management and determining
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior management.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for ensuring that
no Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration, which will be determined with reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions. Members are provided with sufficient resources,
including but not limited to, the access to independent professional
advice, where necessary, in carrying out their obligations, at the expense
of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee held nine meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017 for reviewing the remuneration package
of the Directors and the senior management, assessing performance
of executive Directors, approving the terms of executive Directors’
service contracts and making recommendations to the Board as to
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members as at the date
of this report namely:

Mr. Cheng Chai Fu (Chairman)
(Appointed with effect from 9 March 2017)

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco

All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors.
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In addition, pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, an
analysis of annual remuneration payable to the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out
below:

AN - RIBRFRE AT RIST AR EB.1.505 -
ENESRERBNEREZE_T—+F+_-A
=+ RAUEFEZFEHFMRFTMER DT
FIanR

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

Number of Number of

persons persons

A N

Above HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 7T A 5 4

HK$NIl to HK$1,000,000 Z 021,000,000/ 7T 9 10
NOMINATION COMMITTEE BEEZES

The Company has established a nomination committee of the ARAFRER-_ZT——F A -+ _-_HKIEE

Board on 22 June 2011 (the “Nomination Committee”) for making &@IEZLEZE=([IRLEES|)  URESTESE

recommendations to the Board on appointment of the Directors and REHEMET AERBEMEETSELHER

succession planning of the Directors. oo

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board composition, making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and succession planning of the Directors, assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
reviewing the Policy. Members are provided with access to independent
professional advice, where necessary, in carrying their obligations at the
expense of the Company.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination
Committee held four meetings. The members reviewed the current
composition of the Board and discussed about the Board structure
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company
pursuant to its terms of reference (available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange) and the Policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company appointed
two executive Directors namely Mr. Ye Shusheng and Mr. Min Zhi Dong
and one independent non-executive Director namely Mr. Cheng Chai
Fu. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the appointed Directors’
background, including but not limited to independence, gender, age,
cultural and education background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The Nomination Committee considered current Board
Composition has achieved the objectives of the Policy.
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In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Ye
Shusheng, Mr. Huang Yun and Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco shall retire and
are eligible to offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of the
Directors standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises three members as at the date of
this report namely:

Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Chai Fu (Appointed with effect from 9 March 2017)
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest

All of the current members are independent non-executive Directors.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee of the Board on
22 June 2011 (the “Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference
(available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange) that
set out the authorities and duties of the Audit Committee adopted by the
Board. The Audit Committee performs, amongst others, the following
functions:

e reviewing the financial information of the Group;

e reviewing the relationship with and the terms of appointment of the
external auditors; and

e overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system, internal
control system and risk management system.

The Audit Committee is given sufficient resources to oversee the internal
control system of the Group, reports to the Board on any material issues,
and makes recommendations to the Board. During the year under review,
the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s annual results and annual
report for the year ended 31 December 2016, and the interim results and
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2017 the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group, the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems and processes, the effectiveness of Company’s
internal audit function and the re-appointment of the external auditors.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2017.

The Audit Committee comprises three members as at the date of this
report namely:

Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest (Chairman)
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco
Mr Cheng Chai Fu (Appointed with effect from 9 March 2017)

All the members are independent non-executive Directors. None of the
members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s
existing external auditors.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, maintaining sound systems of risk management and
internal controls and reviewing their effectiveness to safeguard interests
of the Group as a whole. However, such systems are designed to
manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk profile, rather than to
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives of the Group,
they can only provide reasonable assurance but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the significant risks faced by the Group. This process
includes enhancing the systems of risk management and internal
control in view of the changes to the business environment or regulatory
guidelines.

Management assists the Board in the implementation of the Group’s
policies, procedures and controls by identifying and assessing the
risks faced, and in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable
internal controls to mitigate and control these risks. The adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal controls
of the Group are annually reviewed by the Board. The review covers all
material controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
as well as the process for the identification, evaluation and management
of the significant risks faced by the Company and the Group. The Board
also reviews the adequacy of resources, employees’ qualifications
and experience, their training programmes, and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions. The Board
has conducted and completed such review in respect of the year ended
31 December 2017 and considers the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group effective and adequate.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

For the purposes of handling and disseminating inside information
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Company has
in place a policy on handling and dissemination of inside information
(“Policy”) which sets out the procedures and internal controls for handling
and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner in such a way
S0 as not to place any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow
time for the market to price the listed securities of the Company with the
latest available information. This Policy also provides guidelines to staff of
the Company to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the Company
from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It also includes
appropriate internal control and reporting systems to identify and assess
potential inside information. Dissemination of inside information of the
Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company on their reporting
responsibilities and opinion on the Group’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by
the external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could
lead to any potential material adverse effect on the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has incurred an
aggregate fee of approximately HK$1,330,000 to the external auditor and
its affiliate. Among such fee, the amount of approximately HK$1,150,000
was paid for the final audit purposes including interim review and
HK$180,000 was paid to its affiliate for non-audit purposes, the non-
audit services mainly consist of consulting services in relation to the
environmental, social and governance reporting, risk assessment and
review on financing reporting procedures and internal control system.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view. In
preparing the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies and
standards are selected and applied consistently.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and facilitating communications among the
Directors as well as with shareholders and management.

During 2017, Mr. Chung Tin Yan (“Mr. Chung”) has attended relevant
professional training to update their skills and knowledge. He met the
training requirements as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency is
a key to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of open
and timely disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and the
public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual and interim
reports.

The website of the Company (www.legend-strategy.com) has provided
an effective communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

The Company has not made any change to its constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2017. A consolidated version of
the Company’s constitutional documents is available on the Company’s
website and the website of the Stock Exchange.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director receives a formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to
ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has continuously provided relevant training materials to the
Directors. Directors participated in continuous development relating to
their roles, functions and duties of a listed company director or further
enhancement of their professional development by the way of attending
training courses or reading relevant materials. All Directors had provided
the Company their training records for the year under review. The
Directors and officers are indemnified under a Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in discharge
of their duties while holding office as the Directors and officers of the
Company. The Directors and officers shall not be indemnified where there
is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust proven against them.
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SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION BERRZBRE
The Company has adopted a shareholders communication policy with — ZNA &) 2 R4V AR B &R~ Bss - S EmEE

objectives to provide our shareholders with detailed information about
the Company so that they can exercise their rights as shareholders
in an informed manner. The Company would review the shareholders
communication policy on a regular basis.
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The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives, including
annual general meeting, annual report, various notices, announcements
and circulars. Procedures for demanding a poll have been included in
circulars accompanying notice convening a general meeting and such
procedures have been read out by the chairman of the general meeting.
The annual general meeting and other general meetings of the Company
are primary forum for communication between the Company and its
shareholders. The Company shall provide shareholders with relevant
information on the resolution(s) proposed at a general meeting in a timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules. The information provided
shall be reasonably necessary to enable shareholders to make an
informed decision on the proposed resolution(s). At the annual general
meeting held on 26 May 2017 (the “2017 AGM”), a separate resolution
was proposed by the chairman in respect of each separate issue,
including re-election of the Directors.

At the 2017 AGM, the executive Directors, the chairmen of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees and representatives from the
auditor of the Company, ZhongHui Anda CPA Limited, were present for
questions from shareholders. There was one general meeting held during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2012
Revision). However, shareholders are requested to follow article 58 of
the Articles of Association of the Company, general meetings shall be
convened on the written requisition of any one or more members holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the secretary to the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
PROPOSE A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS A
DIRECTOR

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company are laid down under article 85 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be eligible
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting unless a
notice in writing of the intention to propose such person for election as a
Director, signed by a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed
for election as a Director) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
for which such notice is given, and a notice in writing signed by such
person of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
head office or at the registration office. The minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given shall be at least seven (7) days and
the period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no earlier than
the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of
such general meeting. Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSAL

If a shareholder wishes to make any proposal at any general meeting
of the Company, the shareholder should deposit a written notice of
the proposal to the company secretary of the Company within 7 days
commencing from the date of the notice of the general meeting of the
Company (or such other period as may be determined and announced
by the Director from time to time).

PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company, for the
attention of the company secretary, by email: info@Isih.com.hk, or mail
to Room 3006-10, 30/F., China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

BREBARSERESNER

BRBRRIERABRZER/ARRESTNRTER
PIRA R RIABAEZ T2 AN R S 85140 R - BRIFIE
ExefEE2E  SAENALT(ERARE L
REZEEHRIN BEEREEARRAE L

SBE RN BRIEA R BN E R AT
FREE-DALAAEREFEASLANE

FREN—EZRB(HRELEETE A LR
INFTEE  RPFBRIEEAZATZERAES
ZEMBA - RKE—HBRZEIRES AT
F ARTEBEESEECEMBA - EHZ
SBEANBRMETORETR  BRZER
Mz BRI ERIEEETRIEE ZRREX
emE %“%é&at;r NTERZRRE AR
ITHERIEM)RER - RRIEZARXELE
%E’J&f?gﬁﬁﬁ’\\zﬁﬁjéﬁiﬁﬂﬁ

RREHEBNER

AR AN AR BEMERBRAE L2 2 A2
& BRRABARABRRAG RS BHEE
BA(HAESETRRE R AMEAMIE) [
AABNARMEREBERREIZEEM °

MESSRHEANEF

REAEBUTHFAMARA(GEHARF
WEAKRHEA)ELEEDEH %é*iﬁ?t
info@lsih.com.hk + Sk ES 27 = &8 &1 78 /&E
SREE R /E30ME3006-10F °

Annual Report 2017
ZE—FFR

37



38

Corporate Governance Report
SREAEE

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing Rules
and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate,
truthful and complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well as
the public to make rational and informed decisions.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance could ensure an
effective distribution of the resources and shareholders’ interests. The
senior management will continue endeavors in maintaining, enhancing
and increasing the Group’s corporate governance level and quality.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RS -#HERERHRE

The Group hereby presents this Environmental, Social and Governance
report (“ESG report”) for the year ended 31 December 2017, in order to
comply with the requirements set forth in Appendix 27 Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules. This
covers the environmental and social performance of the core business
of the Group in the PRC during the period from 1 January 2017 to
31 December 2017 (the “Year”).

The Board is responsible for our ESG strategy and reporting including
evaluating and determining our ESG-related risks and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems are in place. We have engaged Zhonghui Anda Risk Services
Limited to identify relevant ESG issues and to assess their materiality
to our business as well as our stakeholders, through reviewing our
Group’s operations and holding internal discussions. Our management
has provided a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of our
ESG risk management and internal control systems. Pursuant to the
general disclosure requirements of the ESG Guide, disclosures relating
to the material ESG issues identified have been included in this ESG
Report which aims to provide a balanced representation of our Group’s
ESG performance in the environmental and social areas, and covers our
Group’s operations.

EMISSIONS

As stated above, the Group is principally engaged in budget hotel
operations and hence the emission relating to air, greenhouse gas
emissions and discharge into the water and land, as well as generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste are minimal in the Year.

During the Year, the major greenhouse gases emission of the Nanshan
Hotel, Luohu Hotel and Baoan Hotel were the greenhouse gas generated
by the electricity consumption and the waste paper disposal at landfills. In
order to minimise the energy consumption and waste paper of Nanshan
Hotel, Luohu Hotel and Baoan Hotel, various sustainable development
measures have been enforced to address environmental responsibilities
within normal operating procedures, including but not limited to (i)
Compact fluorescent lamp were installed as much as possible in the
Nanshan Hotel, Luohu Hotel and Baoan Hotel as at 31 December 2017;
(i) switch on and off sensors were installed in the corridors; (iii) staff
were encouraged to switch off the electronic devices, lights and air-
conditioners after the use of a room or leaving office for a period of time
such as lunch hour; (iv) air-conditioners with low efficiency or malfunction
were replaced in the Year; (v) refrigerators were kept away from sunlight;
and (vi) staff was encouraged to print only when necessary and use
recycle papers in first priority for printing so far as practicable.
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Emission data from the hotel operations of the Group are set out as

AEEBE S EELNBERBBETIT

follows:
Environmental Performance Unit Nanshan Hotel Luohu Hotel Baoan Hotel Total
RERSR By F L ey BEZE wEE
Electricity consumption KWh 489,601 277,690 88,891 856,182
BER FEE
Carbon dioxide (“CO,”) Ton 150.3 85.3 27.3 262.9
equivalent emission for U
electricity consumption®
HREEEN A
(TZ&kiz)) 8 BHK
Electricity Intensity KWh per guest night 8.1 14.2 9.5 9.6
RERE TR/ EEE%
Water Consumption e 11,237 6,994 4,685 22,916
IKFE MK
CO, equivalent emission Ton 7.9 4.9 3.3 16.1
for water used 17
TR R LIRE 2K
Water Intensity M? per guest night 0.2 0.4 0.5 0.3
KEE URK/EEEH
Paper Ton 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2
R T
CO, equivalent emission Ton 0.2 0.2 0.3 0.7
for paper used 17
SAEN S IRE EHR
Paper Intensity Ton per quest right 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
HRBE W/ E R
Non-hazardous waste disposal Ton 17.0 7.0 4.2 28.2
SEREREMHEN IR
Non-hazardous waste intensity Kg per guest night 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.3
FEEENETE DT/ EEER

*

Environmental KPIs”.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

IEBIR S E A R AR

emission factor is sourced from the China Southern Power Grid in 2016.
The figures are calculated in accordance with the “Reporting Guidance on

* BHERDRE-E-AFTEETEN - &
BRI RRERERURRREIES| FHE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI - 4 ERERWRE

No hazardous waste is generated from the operations of hotel business.
Non-hazardous waste generated from the operations in Nanshan
Hotel, Luohu Hotel and Baoan Hotel are mainly office and hotel room
consumables. The hotel staff has promoted separation of waste such as
cartons and plastic bottles, which are placed in certain areas assigned to
recycled suppliers for collection. For the hotel consumables such as cans
and used plastic bottles of water, the building management offices of
landlords have separated them from other waste for recycling purposes.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations that has an impact relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and land, generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste of the Group in the Year.

No fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations had been reported in the Year.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is committed to minimising the impact of business activities on
the environment and supporting environmental protection programmes.
In particular, a number of initiatives, which are designed to conserve
resources, were introduced to promote employee awareness of the need
to achieve efficient utilisation of resources.

As mentioned in the above “Emissions” section, the Group has a series of
policies and procedures to minimise the electricity used by the employees
in Nanshan Hotel, Luohu Hotel and Baoan Hotel. In order to increase
the electricity consumption efficiency, a number of new air-conditioners
and compact fluorescent lamp were installed in the Year. Other than
the above, solar water heaters and heat pumps have been installed in
Nanshan Hotel to generate daily hot water supply in order to reduce gas
or electricity consumption. In addition, shower sprinklers with low water
pressure were installed in all bathrooms of Nanshan Hotel, Luohu Hotel
and Baoan Hotel to reduce water consumption and water intensity.

As the Group is principally engaged in budget hotel operations, no
packing material was used in the Year.
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RIR - HERERERE

Regarding the hotel operations, the Group closely monitors the level of FAEBEEELEME @ AEEZ Y8 R
energy consumption and greenhouse gas emissions of its hotels. Every & BI8ETREFE MR *ﬁﬁf?ﬁﬁbki m S -
year, Nanshan Hotel, Luohu Hotel and Baocan Hotel are required to set  Z&ifE N E L EFFH B L HER AR
their respective energy and carbon reduction targets, and come up with NI EE B - WHlE AT THEEAZEK BEZ -
feasible measures to achieve them. The details and results achieved are  FTiEZERFEIBE RAREIIOT ©

listed as follows:

Projects

HH

Compact fluorescent lamp

Shower heads

HEIETR

Solar water heaters and heat pumps

INUE 20 SV

= S0

EHH

Air-conditioners

12

Non-Hazardous Waste

FBEED

Details and results achieved

FEZNHRRER

Lightings in the Nanshan Hotel, Luohu Hotel and Baoan Hotel have been
installed compact fluorescent lamps which have saved up much electricity as
compared with incandescent light lamp.

MILE BHERBERZEERKBRERERARE  ALIREEHEELES -

Using water savings shower heads in the bathroom of the Nanshan Hotel,
Luohu Hotel and Baoan Hotel since 2016, consumption of water is saved after
installation.

BE_Z-REERELUE  BHREREREAEEREAKEER  LRIEREEH
HAK -

Solar water heaters and heat pumps have been installed in Nanshan Hotel to
generate daily hot water supply in order to reduce gas or electricity consumption.
The consumption of electricity is saved in the Nanshan Hotel for water heating.
EREILELZEARGREAKSERERAREETHREUKMERE - URDREBHE S
JHFE o m LR ETE UK E T E TR DR A B S ERE ©

A number of new air-conditioners have been upgrading from old air-conditioners
in 2017, the relevant oonsumption of electricity would be reduced.

R-Z—LFOBETEZAARENZR - HEEEREERRD -

Non-hazardous waste from the Nanshan Hotel, Luohu Hotel and Baoan Hotel
includes packaging materials of hotel guest supplies, paper for office use and
kitchen waste from restaurants of hotels. The hotels made their best effort to
minimising the impact on the environment by using biodegradable material for
packaging materials of hotel guest supplies. The hotels promoted separation
of waste such as cartons and plastic bottles, which are placed in certain areas
assigned to recycled suppliers for collection.

FILE BRERELRENFBEEEYREEEEERBEYE AR
MBS BB SRREY) o BIEEREEE R AMeRYEHRA A £ EY
B RERLRELE  BERSED(NEHENRERR) DB RERDIKT
Bl pE P 0 8 T R S E R g -
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BRI - 4 ERERWRE

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group always raise energy-saving awareness among the staff of
Nanshan Hotel, Luohu Hotel and Baoan Hotel, reminding them to switch
off all lighting and electronic devices after use. On the other hand, hotel
guests are encouraged energy reduction by providing energy-saving tips
in hotel lobbies and written reminders in guest rooms.

The impact on the environment and natural resources from the hotel
operations of the Group in PRC is minimal in the Year.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group places a significant emphasis on developing human capital
and provides competitive remuneration and welfare packages. Promotion
opportunities and salary adjustments are benchmarked against individual
performance. Employees are entitled to benefits such as annual leave,
sick leave, maternity leave, marriage leave, funeral leave and medical
coverage in accordance with local regulations.

Distribution of work force classified by difference catalogues as follows:

RERKXAER

AEBETRIAREILE  BHENELEETY
ERREE B3 - IREEE TMEMRBFMAE K
REFRE - Z—TH  BBRBERNERHY
R LN BEEREHEMARET - &
VB (EFERIREIR o

AEE  AEERTENEELLHRERS
RERIERK T BRI -

=]

AEEREERERANEALRHAHS
MFBREFES BEREETEARIRIE
HEARBRELHERE - BREAREE
FEREAFER  BER - ER - BR - BRERUE
BERREZEEM -

SRR BN BB AT

Social Performance Unit Nanshan Hotel Luohu Hotel Baoan Hotel Total
HERR By g ;MR BRIE B
By Gender

BRI S

Male People 2(10%) 4(33%) 1(14%) 7(18%)
B A

Female People 19(90%) 8(67%) 6(86%) 33(82%)
g A

Total People 21(100%) 12(100%) 7(100%) 40(100%)
e A

By Age Group

REwRARIE D

Under 30 years old People 5(24%) 5(42%) 3(43%) 13(33%)
30 AT A

30-50 years old People 13(62%) 7(58%) 4(57%) 24(60%)
30E5075% A

Over 50 years old People 3(14%) - - 3(7%)
507 bA £ A

Total People 21(100%) 12(100%) 7(100%) 40(100%)
#at A
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The Group places emphasis on equal opportunities for all personnel in
respect of hiring, pay rates, training and development, promotion and
other terms of employment. The Group is committed to providing a
working environment which is free from any form of discrimination on the
basis of ethnicity, gender, religion, age, disability or sexual orientation.

The Group has a wide diversity of cultures including the employees
with different genders, ages, skills, educational backgrounds, industry
experiences and other qualifications in order to achieve the most suitable
composition and balance.

The Group has enhanced its employee handbook with effect from
January 2015 which is applicable for all three leased-and-operated
hotels operated by the Group. Such employee handbook is developed in
accordance with the Labour Law of PRC and has been distributed to all
employees since they commence working for the Group.

The remuneration and position of the employees of the hotel operations
will be adjusted which are based on the results of individual working
performance and efficiency. Staff bonus are based on the performance
appraisal and operating results.

Treatment of employee’s misconduct must be fair and reasonable in all
of the circumstances. Misconduct may lead to a warning and even a
dismissal. Any acts of misconduct are to be reported to the human and
administration department. In the Year, no incident of serious misconduct
was identified.

Employees’ wages, overtime payments and related benefits are made
not less than the local government’s minimum requirements. The normal
working hours for general employees are normally 8 hours a day and 40
hours a week. Integrated computation of working hours is implemented
with reference to the requirements of the PRC Labour Law.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that has a significant impact relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare on the Group in the Year.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions
had been reported in the Year.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group adopts non-discriminatory employment practices and
provides a healthy and safe workplace. All employees are strictly required
to follow the operating procedures, which include but not limited to (i) pay
attention to whether there is a dangerous work situation, if found, should
immediately report to the superior; (i) use both hands to handle the carts;
(iii) use a ladder or chair to take items from a height or ask for colleagues
to help; (iv) erase the slippery or oily working areas immediately in order
to prevent slipping; (v) do not use damaged machines or appliances to
avoid accidents; (vi) maintain a variety of tools and safety equipment; and
(vi) strictly enforce the industry norms and professional operation.

Smoking is prohibited in all indoor areas of Nanshan Hotel, Luohu Hotel
and Baoan Hotel. First aid, fire extinguishing, evacuation, leakage and
escape exercises are regularly performed. Two fire drills were conducted
in the Year for Nanshan Hotel, Luohu Hotel and Baoan Hotel.

For electrical works, Nanshan Hotel, Luohu Hotel and Baoan Hotel have
employed two electrical technicians who have valid licences granted by
relevant government officials.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that has a significant impact on the Group relating
to provide a safety working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards in the Year.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions
had been reported in the Year.

BEEZE
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group has been committed to providing on-the-job training of
its employees in order to enhance their knowledge and skills. All
employees are encouraged to enhance their skills and knowledge at
every opportunity in order to perform their current job more efficiently
and effectively and to be better prepared for career opportunities which
may arise. During the Year, quarterly training courses were provided to
the employees including but not limited to customer check-in and check-
out procedures, room services techniques, disinfection techniques for
hotel rooms, fire safety, handling customers’ complaint, handling of items
left by customers and so on. The employees participated actively in the
training courses. For certain external training courses recommended
by the Group, such fees of training course are borne by the Group in
accordance with the specific guidelines of reimbursement stated in the
employee handbook.

For recreation activities, the Group often organises a variety of
physical and mental health or sports activities, such as various sports
competitions, outdoor picnic and employees’ birthday party.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group fully understands that the exploitation of child and forced
labour are universally condemned, and therefore take the responsibility
against child and forced labour very seriously. The Group complies with
all laws and regulations against child labour and forced labour strictly for
the three leased-and-operated hotels.

For entry registration, all employees must present valid documents and
copies to the Group as follows: (i) identity card, academic proof such
as diploma or degree certificate, title certificate, vocational qualification
certificate, English grade certificate; (i) social security card; (i) medical or
health certificate; (iv) recent photos; and (v) other relevant information and
documents required by the Group. The above procedures can ensure no
child labour will be employed in the hotel operations.

All Employees are entitled to have sick leave, injury leave and maternity
leave with medical proof in accordance with the Labour Law of PRC.
In addition, all employees work normally 8 hours daily and are not
encouraged to work overtime. But if overtime work is required, the
relevant employees and superior will agree mutually in written form. The
compensation for overtime work is in accordance with the provisions of
Labour Law of PRC.
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Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations relating to preventing child or forced labour on the Group
in the Year.

No non-compliance with law that resulted in significant fines or sanctions
had been reported in the Year.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up strict supply chain management system to ensure
high quality of service to our hotel customers. Specific attentions have
been paid to promote the health and safety consumables and services of
all three hotels.

The Group adheres to the principle of transparency and implements the
values of honesty, integrity and fairness in the supply chain management.
When selecting suppliers, the Group takes into account the factors such
as quality of services and products, past performance and reputation of
the suppliers. When dealing with suppliers of goods and services, the
approval procedures are in place to ensure that supplier engagements
are monitored and approved by the appropriate level of management.
The Group expects major suppliers to observe the same environmental,
social, health and safety and governance policies in their operating
practices as those adopted by the Group.

The major suppliers for hotel operations are supply of bottles of water,
washing of bed linings and pest control. For drinking water provided to
customers, the Group places orders to acquire bottles of water from a
well-known brand which has a series of green production procedures.
For washing of bed linings, the Group requires the supplier to provide
hygiene licence and environmental protection certificate prior to placing
any order. For pest control, the Group requires the supplier to use pest
control materials or consumables which fulfil the required standards of
local laws and regulations.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

A high priority for the Group is to ensure customer satisfaction in terms
of our products and services. Strenuous efforts are made to ensure
compliance with the laws and regulations relating to product health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters of the jurisdictions
in which we operate. The Group requires its employees to comply
with applicable governmental and regulatory laws, rules, codes and
regulations.
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The Group deals with lots of private and confidential information of its
hotel customers. Hence, the Group has set up strict code of conduct
requirements for their employees. In addition, the employees are required
to maintain all reasonable methods to safeguard the information of the
Group and the customers as stated in employee handbook and working
practices.

As mentioned above, smoking is prohibited in all indoor areas of Nanshan
Hotel, Luohu Hotel and Baoan Hotel. First aid, fire extinguishing,
evacuation, leakage and escape exercises are regularly performed.
Daily hotel room cleaning services and regular hygiene inspection are
maintained from time to time. If a customer complains on initially assigned
hotel room, the front line staff will arrange another hotel room until it is
satisfied by the customer.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that has a significant impact relating to health and
safety, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress on the Group in the Year.

No significant fines had been reported in the Year.
ANTI-CORRUPTION

Corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in any form are
strictly prohibited. The Group’s anti-corruption policies set out standards
of conduct to which all employees are required to adhere in order to
promote the integrity environment in the workplace. Any employee is
prohibited from giving and accepting of advantages, by using the excuse
of work or the authority granted from the Group. The advantages include
but not limited to money, gifts, loans, rewards, contracts, services and
entertainment.

All employees are required to strictly follow the guidelines stated in the
employee handbook, which includes but is not limited to (i) protection
of customer information, business decision and private documents; (ii)
report and contribute to the Group for any gifts, commission, rebate
exceeding RMB100; (iii) prohibit to use the name or authority of the
Group for personal benefit; and (iv) prohibit to negotiate business
separately such as signing of contract, purchase of equipment or goods
without obtaining approval from relevant superiors.
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The Group encourages the reporting of dishonest acts by the employees.
The human resources department may terminate the employment
contract with the employee who carries out dishonest acts as stated in
the employee handbook. The content of the complaint should be clear
to the fact that it is forbidden to fabricate the facts without any factual
basis or vent their anger. The criteria for a valid complaint includes (i)
the individual is unfairly treated in which relevant superior handling of
the problem is not fair, abuse of power or combat retaliation; and (i) the
behaviour of individual causes damage to the interests of the Group.
All employees can raise their complaint by putting a written letter into
a complaint box located at reception of the hotel, by mail to human
resources department or even by verbal presentation.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that has a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering in the Year.

There was no legal case concerning corruption brought against the
Group or its employees in the Year.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to creating sustainable prosperity that brings
long-term social and economic benefits for all stakeholders, particularly
to maintain the relationship with interest groups which are relevant to
business operation. This is realised by first meeting the needs of the hotel
employees and then further extending the caring and services to their
families and to the surrounding community.

Although the Group has not established and documented a specific
community policy, social care is deep-seated in the Group’s corporate
culture. Employees are encouraged to participate in various charitable
events and community service.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to submit
their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company, and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review are set out in the section of “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 17.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group is
principally engaged in the budget hotel operations and provision of hotel
consultancy and hotel management services in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segments is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on page 66 of this annual
report. The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2017.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTIES

The Group did not own any major property or property interests as at 31
December 2017.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’s Share capital during the year
are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had no reserve available for
distribution to shareholders including share premium account and
accumulated losses.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in the equity
on page 70 respectively.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The diversity and nature of the Group’s activities are such that the
percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
contributed approximately 23.8% (2016: 36.2%) of the total and the
Directors do not consider any one customer to be influential to the
Group.

The main suppliers of the Group comprise of suppliers of disposable
amenities, bed linings cleaning, laundry services, supply of bottles of
water and pest control. For the financial year ended 31 December
2017, the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 50.0% (2016: 78.0%) of the total purchases and
purchases from the largest supplier accounted for approximately 28.6%
(2016: 30.3%) of total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued Share capital) had any interest in the
Group'’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers during the financial
year ended 31 December 2017.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a loan of HK$16,935,781 from
China Medical Overseas Limited, controlling shareholder of the Company.
The loan is unsecured, carries interest at the rate of 8% per annum and is
repayable on 1 June 2020. Save for the loan, the Group did not have any
outstanding bank borrowings (2016: nil).

Moreover, on top of the above Shareholder’s loan, China Medical
Overseas Limited has also made available a credit facility up to the
amount of HK$20,000,000 to the Company under substantially the same
terms with the Shareholder’s loan which the Company may request for
drawdown at any time prior to 31 March 2018.

INTEREST CAPITALISATION

The Group had HK$1,349,160 capitalised interest during the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: HK$95,973).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for year ended 31 December 2017
is set out on page 128 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ye Shusheng
(Appointed with effect from 15 December 2017)

Mr. Huang Yun

Mr. Dai Lifeng

Mr. Min Zhi Dong (Appointed with effect from 1 April 2017
and resigned with effect from 1 March 2018)

Mr. Wu Lixin (Resigned with effect from 30 November 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lu Zefeng
Mr. Chung Wai Man (Appointed with effect from 13 February 2017 and
resigned with effect from 30 November 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Chai Fu (Appointed with effect from 9 March 2017)
Mr. Tso Hon Sai Bosco
Mr. Wong Yiu Kit Ernest
Mr. Leung Siu Hong (Resigned with effect from 9 March 2017)

Mr. Wu Lixin resigned as an executive Director and the chief executive
officer with effect from 30 November 2017. Mr. Chung Wai Man resigned
as a non-executive Director with effect from 30 March 2017. Mr. Leung
Siu Hong resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect
from 9 March 2017. Mr. Min Zhi Dong resigned as an executive Director
with effect from 1 March 2018. Mr. Wu Lixin, Mr. Chung Wai Man, Mr.
Leung Siu Hong and Mr. Min Zhi Dong have confirmed that they have
no disagreement with the Board and they are not aware of any matter
regarding their resignation that need to be brought to the attention of
the shareholders of the Company. The Board would like to express
its sincere gratitude to Mr. Wu Lixin, Mr. Chung Wai Man, Mr. Leung
Siu Hong and Mr. Min Zhi Dong for their valuable contributions to the
Company during their tenure of office.

The terms of office of each Director are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out from pages 18 to 22 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2017 AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The service agreements entered into by the Company with each of the
executive Directors, which are currently in force and were in force during
the year ended 31 December 2017, contain indemnity provisions which
are permitted indemnity provisions under section 467 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for the benefit of
the executive Directors. Pursuant to such provisions, the Company shall
indemnify any executive Director against any liability attaching to him in
connection with any legal proceedings in which he is involved by reason
of being a Director, and in which the judgment is given in his favour or in
which he is acquitted.

TERMS OF OFFICE FOR THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term of one year to three years, but subject to the relevant provisions
of the Articles of Associations or any other applicable laws whereby the
directors shall vacate or retire from their office.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively. Remuneration packages
of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following Director had interest in the shares of the Company as notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code and
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO:

BEERFETHRAEREATIRE
HELZER G - HERND R EER
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UTEZNARBRNDHEARBRETAIZA
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Approximately

percentage of

the issued

Capacity/Nature Number and share capital

Name of Director of interest class of shares (Note)
HEBRITRAE

Y B RERNE RGEE K& E5 BB 2 Ee (HEE)
Dai Lifeng Beneficial owner 8,060,000 Shares 1.80%
CIAvE 23 EmEAA 8,060,0008% 1.80%

Note: The approximate shareholding percentage is based on the number of
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2017 of 448,363,708.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, so far as was
known to the Directors, none of the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Mz MAOREES L DER-_Z—+F+ =
=+—HB#17Mk{) 448,363,708 ©

BEXPIEEN  HEZMM R-T—+
F+-A=1t—H8 BMEARREZTRER]T
BABRARBREEMREER(EERE
7 LR ARBIEXVER) VAt - AEREAX (D
HEREAEGAECNARAIREES LB
B &PIE352157F B 2 B MR BRETR
ARG AN B MR P s MUK R

Annual Report 2017
T EER

55



Report of the Directors
EEERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company, not being Directors or the chief executive of the Company,
had interests in the Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
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by the Company under section 336 of the SFO: BBk
Aggregate
percentage of
Shareholding
Name Capacity Number of shares (Note 1)
BREBIL
HE =37} RO EE (PifEE1)
China Medical Overseas Limited Beneficial owner 259,417,060 57.86%
(formerly known as China Angel BEn#EEA
Investments Holding Limited)
(Note 2) 3
hERZEINER A E (AT
PEIREREZEREGRAF])
(MtzE2)
Ding Yifan (Note 2) Beneﬂcial owner 16,770,000
T—R.(H5E2) BEmEAA
Interest of a controlled 259,417,060
corporation
RIEHEARE 2 R
276,187,060 61.60%
Central China International Investment Person having a security 201,503,082 44.94%
Company Limited (Note 3) interest in Shares
MBI IR E AR AR (HIE3) PR EBREER 2 AL
Central China Securities Co. Ltd. Interest of a controlled 201,503,082 44.94%
(Note 3) ~_corporation
hREHRD AR AR (HIFE3) R ENERE 2
Central China International Financial Interest of a controlled 201,503,082 44.94%
Holdings Company Limited corporation
(Note 3)
N B < AR B BR A A R EDERE 2
(M¥E3)
Lyu Na (Note 4) Interest of spouse 276,187,060 61.60%
= R(KET4) i
China Dragon Asia Champion Fund Investment manager 41,378,071 9.23%

Series SPC
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Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

The approximate shareholding percentages are based on the number of
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2017 of 448,363,708.

As at 31 December 2017, the equity interests in China Medical Overseas
Limited were owned by Mr. Ding Yifan and Mr. Huang Yun as to 90% and
10% respectively. Mr. Ding Yifan was therefore deemed to be interested
in the 259,417,060 Shares in which China Medical Overseas Limited was
interested under the SFO.

As at 31 December 2017, the 201,503,082 shares were subject to a
share charge executed by China Medical Overseas Limited (as charger)
in favour of Central China International Investment Company Limited (as
chargee).

As at 31 December 2017, Central China International Investment
Company Limited was wholly owned by Central China International
Financial Holdings Company Limited, which was in turn wholly owned by
Central China Securities Co. Ltd.. Accordingly, Central China Securities
Co. Ltd. and Central China International Financial Holdings Company
Limited were deemed to be interested in the 201,503,082 Shares in
which Central China International Investment Company Limited was
interested under the SFO.

Lyu Na, the spouse of Mr. Ding Yifan, was deemed to be interested in
the 276,187,060 shares in which Mr. Ding Yifan was interested under the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, so far as was
known to the Directors, no other person (not being a Director or the
chief executive of the Company) had any interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

For the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of this report,
the Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors,
the management of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflict of interest which any such
person has or may have with the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no

(1) transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party;

2) contract of significance between the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, and any of the Company’s controlling shareholders
or their subsidiaries; or

3) contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, by any of the Company’s
controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries

subsisting during or at the end of the financial year in which any Director
or any entity connected with any Director is or was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisitions of shares or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporates.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The related party transactions set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted continuing connected transactions of
the company which were fully exempt under chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company which were
not contracts of service with Directors or persons engaged in the full-time
employment of the Company were entered into or existed during the year
under review.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted continuing connected transactions of
the Company which were fully exempt under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

On 2 June 2017, 28 August 2017 and 28 December 2017, the
Company’s controlling owner, China Medical Overseas Limited, advanced
secured shareholder’s loans (“Shareholder’s loans”) in the amount of
HK$6,000,000, HK$5,500,000 and HK$5,000,000 respectively, to the
Company which is on normal commercial terms or better to the Group.
Such Shareholders’ loans are all for a term of 3 years and carry interest
at the rate of 8% per annum.

Moreover, on 28 August 2017, on top of the above Shareholder’s loans.
China Medical Overseas Limited has also made available a credit facility
up to amount of HK$20,000,000 to the Company under substantially
the same terms with the Shareholder’s loans which the Company may
request for drawdown at any time prior to 31 March 2018.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a Share option scheme (“Scheme”) which was
adopted pursuant to a resolution of the sole shareholder passed on 22
June 2011. The purpose of the Scheme is to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future developments and expansion
of the Group. The Scheme shall be an incentive to encourage the
participants to perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group
and allow the participants to enjoy the results of the Company attained
through their efforts and contributions.

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any director, full-time employee
or part time employee with weekly working hours of 10 hours or
above of the Group, any adviser or consultant (in the areas of legal,
technical, financial or corporate managerial) to the Group, any provider
of goods and/or services to the Group, any other person who, at the
sole determination of the Board, has contributed to the Group, and any
trustee of a trust whose beneficiaries or objects include any of the above
persons to become participants of the Scheme.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme together with any options outstanding and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme and any other Share option schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total number of Shares of
the Company in issue from time to time. In addition to the foregoing 30%
limit, the total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all Share options to be granted under the Scheme and any other Share
option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of the Shares in issue as at the date of completion of
the placing of the Shares of the Company for the purpose of the listing
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, i.e. 14 July
2011, unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company at
general meeting. As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
Shares available for issue under the Scheme is 9,100,000, representing
2% of the total number of issued Shares of the Company.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
Share options granted to each participant under the Scheme (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding Share options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the relevant class of securities of the
Company in issue.

An offer of Share options under the Scheme shall be deemed to have
been accepted by the grantee when the duplicate of the relevant offer
letter comprising acceptance of the share options duly signed by the
grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00
by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company
within 28 days from the date of the offer.

Share options granted under the Scheme may be exercised at any time
during the option period after they have been granted by the Board but,
in any event, not more than 10 years commencing on the date of grant.
The Share options granted shall lapse automatically (to the extent not
already exercised) on the expiry of the option period.

The subscription price for shares under the Scheme, subject to any
adjustments made pursuant to reorganisation of capital structure, shall
be a price determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the time
of grant of the relevant Share options and notified to the participant and
shall be no less than the higher of () the closing price of the Shares of
the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
on the date on which the relevant Share options are granted; (i) the
average closing price of the Shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date on which the relevant Share options are
granted; and (i) the nominal value of the Shares of the Company.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

The Scheme became effective on 22 June 2011 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the adoption
date, i.e. until 21 June 2021.

Further details about the principal terms of the Scheme are set out in
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix V to the
Company’s prospectus dated 30 June 2011.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has
not granted any Share option under the Scheme. No Share option
under this Scheme remains outstanding as at 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: Nil).

PENSION SCHEMES

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to redeem its contributions to the pension scheme in future
years (2016: nil). The Group participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme organised by the government in the PRC and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme. Particulars of these schemes are
set out under “Employee benefits” in Note 3 of the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 have
been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI") and
a resolution for the reappointment as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting. ZHONGHUI has
been the auditor of the Company since 4 November 2014,

PUBLICATION OF INFORMATION ON WEBSITES

This annual report is available for viewing on the website of Stock
Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the website of the Company at
www.legend-strategy.com.

By Order of the Board

Ye Shusheng
Executive Director

7 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
8 M A% B E R

MM o

ZHONGHUI
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

LEGEND STRATEGY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS GROUP
COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Legend
Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 66 to 127, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Impairment of Property, plant and equipment
Refer to Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of property, plant and equipment for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit because the
balance of property, plant and equipment of HK$11,592,467 as at 31
December 2017 is material to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Group’s impairment test involves application of judgement
and is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Assessing the identification of the related cash generating units;

—  Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use calculations;
—  Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow projections;

— Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions (including
revenue growth, profit margins, terminal growth rates and discount
rates); and

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for property, plant and
equipment is supported by the available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R

Deposits paid for proposed acquisition (the “Deposits”)
Refer to Note 16(b) to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of Deposits for impairment. This
impairment test is significant to our audit because the balance of the
Deposits of HK$23,988,000 as at 31 December 2017 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment
test involves application of judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:
—  Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;
—  Assessing aging of the Deposits;

—  Obtaining confirmation from the payee in respect of the amount and
refundability of the deposits; and

— Discussing the current status of the proposed acquisition with the
Group.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for the Deposits is
supported by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2R

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s website
at: http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standards/
auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Lok

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number PO6084
Hong Kong, 7 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEEREMERRAR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E—E—+&+-_A=+—H I FE

2017 2016
—E—tHF —T—R
Notes HK$ HK$
FaE BT BIT
Revenue & 6 16,281,691 17,654,630
Operating lease expenses CEHERY (14,724,858) (11,832,887)
Depreciation of property, Y - B MEETE
plant and equipment (4,773,982) (4,211,016)
Amortisation of other asset EAth B E (2,400,000) (480,000
Employee benefit expenses E B t@FFZ 7 (21,604,443) (21,591,413)
Utilities NAEHE (1,202,004) (1,317,288)
Other operating expenses HihZERT 12 (11,352,363) (14,997,529)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR MK 31 2,008,866 =
Impairment of property, W% - WEKERERE
plant and equipment - (697,891)
Impairment of other receivables E e sk IB R E - (18,700,000)
Written off of prepaid operating lease MBI ERE - (8,931,190)
Written off of prepayments MEHTE FRIE - (1,100,000)
Written off of property, W - BB Rk
plant and equipment (1,677,105) (29,379,804)
Other income HAbdg A 9 1,049,873 1,051,863
Operating loss BEEE (38,394,325) (94,432,525)
Finance costs BB 10 (7,442,204) (6,057,522)
Loss before tax MRBiLATEE (45,836,529)  (100,490,047)
Income tax credit FriSTE % 11 408,536 2,200,814
Loss for the year FREE 12 (45,427,993) (98,289,233)
Other comprehensive loss: Htt2EEE :
ltems that may be reclassified to profit or ~ FJfEEZ P IEE Bz 2B -
loss:
Exchange differences reclassified to profit EH D iEE HEHE A B
or loss on disposal of subsidiaries FEH A= 31 (1,678,206) =
Exchange differences on translating MEBINETGEE ZEH =5
foreign operations 495,985 (653,027)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRAZHEEIEAZE (46,610,214) (98,842,260)

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REREREMEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
Notes HK$ HK$
BiEE BT BIT
Loss for the year attributable to: DTALTEEFAEE :
Owners of the Company RATEBA (45,356,200) (98,289,233)
Non-controlling interests FEIEIR I A (71,793) =
(45,427,993) (98,289,233)
Total comprehensive loss DTATEGEFERZHEERE
for the year attributable to: sz
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE7 Y =N (46,544,552) (98,842,260)
Non-controlling interests SRR A (65,662) -
(46,610,214) (98,842,260)
Loss per share HhEE 14
— Basic (Hong Kong cents) — AR GE) (11.18) (24.98)
- Diluted (Hong Kong cents) . 10:(1D) (11.18) (24.98)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R R

As at 31 December 2017 R=ZE—+F+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tF —F—R
Notes HK$ HK$
BosE BT BIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% R R 15 11,592,467 9,167,109
Deposits R 16 23,988,000 23,988,000
Rental deposits HERe 16 1,574,898 3,241,518
Prepayment B FOE 16 - 7,180,044
Other asset Hih&E 17 - 2,400,000
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTSTHEE 18 4,286,514 3,187,371
41,441,879 49,164,042
Current assets REEE
Rental deposits HERe 16 1,950,980 -
Prepayments, deposits and other TARFRIE ~ RE R E M EWGRIE
receivables 16 830,726 21,762,008
Trade receivables FEUBR X 19 268,265 64,555
Bank and cash balances IR1TRIA S LR 7,877,594 10,100,000
10,927,565 31,926,563
Current liabilities REBAE
Convertible bonds AR &5 20 - 53,152,913
Trade and other payables FE ST AR R N B FE TSR IR 21 7,732,083 9,796,604
Tax payable e REIE 1,063,262 1,618,650
Provision for asset retirement REEEERIREE 22 232,000 659,645
9,027,345 65,127,812
Net current assets/(liabilities) BREBEE (ARE) 1,900,220 (33,201,249)
Total assets less current liabilities EERABERRBER 43,342,099 15,962,793

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R

As at 31 December 2017 R=ZE—+F+=-A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—tHF —F—R
Notes HK$ HK$
FaE BT BIT
Non-current liabilities FREBERE
Provision for asset retirement WMEBEEEEREE 22 4,280,635 3,135,871
Borrowings BE 23 16,935,781 =
21,216,416 3,135,871
Net assets EEFE 22,125,683 12,826,922
EQUITY e
Capital and reserves EXRf#EE
Share capital %N 24 4,483,637 3,935,250
Reserves e 16,899,063 8,891,672
Equity attributable to owners of the RARIES AE(EER
Company 21,382,700 12,826,922
Non-controlling interests IR AR 742,983 =
Total equity B 22,125,683 12,826,922

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 127 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 7 March 2018 and

are signed on its behalf by:

Approved by:

Huang Yun
B5E
Director

EF

RECEEFI2TANGEANBHRREN_-F
—N\FZRAtHEEESSHERRETEILA

UFALREREE

HATNALZEL :

Ye Shusheng
e 4

Director

EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADTRENES
Convertible
bonds Non-
Share Share Exchange Statutory equity Other  Shareholder's ~ Accumulated controlling
capital premium* reserve* reserve * reserve* reserve* ~ contributions* losses* Sub-total interests Total
TaRES
k% RfEE  EXRE  iERR  RERR  BeER  BREER EER Mt FERER &3t
Note26(c)) ~ Note26(c)ii) ~ Note26(c)fij  Note26(c)i)  Note 26(c))
Waone  Mabosom Moo MEReCM W20
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
bid AT AT AT AT AL AT AT AT AT AT AT
At1 January 2016 R-2-7xE-f-A 3935250 204,694,080 2,373,730 1,742,763 - 8020110 20751024  (134,149.267) 107,367,690 - 107,367,690
Total comprehensive FRAEEELE
loss for the year - - (663,027) - - - - (98280233  (98,842,260) - (98,842,260
Issue of convertiole bonds BTk 2 - - - - 43019 - - - 430149 - 430149
At 31 December 2016 R=B-AETZA=+-A
and 1 January 2017 R=E-t%-5-A 3,935,260 204,694,080 1,620,703 1,742,763 4,301,492 8,020,110 20751024  (232,438,500) 12,826,922 - 1282692
Total comprehensive loss FREERRLE
for the year - - (1188352 - - - - (45,356,200  (46,544,552) (65,662 (46,610,214)
Conversion of convertble HETARES
bonds % 548367 59,662,080 - - (430149 - - - 55908075 - 55908975
Disposalof partal nerest HE-RNEAA
ina subsicary nAER 3 - - - - = = - (oanan)  (G0BG4G) 808645 o
Disposal of subsiclaries HENBAT - - - - - - (356,631) 356,631 - - -
At 31 December 2017 R-E-tE+ZA=1-R 4483637 264,356,160 632,351 1,742,763 - 8020110 20304303  (278,246,714) 21,382,700 742983 22,125,683
Note: EE
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserve of * ZERBREVEGREVBMRAR ZEREFHE

HK$16,899,063 (2016: HK$8,891,672) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 i E—E—+&+ A =+—H I FE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—R
Notes HK$ HK$
BiEE BT BIT
Cash flows from operating activities K& IHELNRERE
Loss before tax BREiRIE R (45,836,529)  (100,490,047)
Adjustments for: SRR
Depreciation e 4,773,982 4,211,016
Amortisation of other asset Hth & E#E I 2,400,000 480,000
Finance cost on asset retirement HEEEEREBD
obligations A& AR 190,469 184,098
Interest on borrowings BEEMNFE 435,781 —
Imputed interest costs on AR ES 2 (& B
convertible bonds 6,815,954 5,873,424
Bank interest income RITHI B WA (3,739) (3,808)
Impairment of property, Y% B KRR ERE
plant and equipment = 597,891
Impairment of other receivables At FEU R IRR(E - 18,700,000
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ekl =YNGE o g 31 (2,008,866) =
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEREE
plant and equipment e = 611)
Written off of property, WEHZE -~ B K&
plant and equipment 1,677,105 29,379,804
Written off of prepaid-operating lease MSHTA EETHE - 8,931,190
Written off of rental deposits WEEEEZ S - 449,464
Written off of prepayments WEHTE RIE - 1,100,000
Share-based payment arising from BT AR B A EE A 2 DA
the issue of convertible bonds NBRERE 2K - 1,485,008
Operating loss before working capital LEESEBHRINLEBIE
changes (31,555,843) (29,102,571)
Change in trade and other receivables JFEE L B 35R T L Ath P LUK IR
Hy 20,723211  (20,213,959)
Change in rental deposits HEZReNE (284,360) 96,200
Change in trade and other payables FE AT AR R N B B A 3R IE
Hy A (2,547,717) (2,104,445)
Cash used in operations REFAAE (13,664,709) (51,324,775)
Income tax paid B ATEHL (415,473) =
Net cash used in operating activities LETREFTAIR & 55 (14,080,182) (51,324,775)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REREMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E—E—+&+-_A=+—H I FE

2017 2016
—E—tF —F—R
Notes HK$ HK$
FfaE BT BIT
Cash flows from investing activites REETHELNRERE
Purchases of property, BEWZE - BB REHE
plant and equipment (16,010) (2,219,104)
Deposit paid for proposed acquisition EakE-EEE 2 EfES
of a hotel - (23,988,000)
Deposit paid for hotel enhancement BIOBEZEMES - (8,000,000)
Acquisition of other asset W B E fih & 2 - (1,440,000)
Interest received BYFIE 3,739 3,808
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHEAR] 31 (7,390) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE K&ER
plant and equipment FrS#0R = 7,330
Net cash used in investing activities B RS FT IR e F5 (19,661) (35,635,966)
Cash flows from financing activities REEHELNRERE
Proceeds from borrowings IS ERFTS IR 16,500,000 =
Convertible bonds interest paid B AR ES B (5,409,052) =
Net proceeds from issuance of MEBEITARRES 2
convertible notes FriS ROR 58 = 50,000,000
Net cash generated from BE RIS S5
financing activities 11,090,948 50,000,000
Net decrease in cash and ReRBSEEYRHD FHE
cash equivalents (3,008,895) (36,960,741)
Cash and cash equivalents FUHE e LRSEEY
at the beginning of the year 10,100,000 47,612,022
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ JMNE[EXREB)F & 786,489 (651,281)
Cash and cash equivalents FRNESREASEEY
at end of the year 7,877,594 10,100,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 i E—E—+&+ A =+—H I FE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands. The address of its principal place of business is Room
3006-10, 30/F., China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, as at 31 December
2017, China Medical Overseas Limited, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, is the controlling shareholder of the
Company. China Medical Overseas Limited is owned by Mr. Ding
Yifan and Mr. Huang Yun, executive director of the Company, as to
90% and 10% equity interest respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the budget hotel operations and provision
of hotel consultancy and management services in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). Apart from the above, the Group
also engaged in provision of financial services during the year. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 33 to the
financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are relevant
to its operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on
1 January 2017. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards; Hong Kong Accounting Standards; and Interpretations.
The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in
significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation
of the Group’s financial statements and amounts reported for the
current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new and revised
HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state whether these new
and revised HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.

—RE#

ARAARASHEAMKZIBEERA
7] o 7 fit #* = & b 4k /& Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° &
B E MBI R BB BB B 265t E
A AES01E3006-10F - AR EIRMHNRE
BHMAERZEER AR ([BRFT])ERE
M °

KAREERE RN-_ZT—+t&+—-A
=+—H FEEBEFIHINFRAR(—MHE
REBEZBEESEMKAINAT) AR
RAIRIEARAR R - PEEEEGINGIR A RIA
T AEEREELRE(RARRITES)
2 RIEB 0% K 10%%# o

RRAEB—HREZERAR - NEEEE
R ZEARLME([HE )R ELE L
AUE G R R AA SR E RS o Bk
AN - REBIITARNERENERE S B
BR7% - EMIB A A EEBHN TR
FMIFESS o

BRANFTE] RAEETTNE B K
WEAEA

AEE - AEEERMTEEHAAGHE
R G RERY N T —LF— A
BIFItA 2 Bt R 2 BT RAEHE
ST B I H ISR ([ BEH R
Bl - BBHHHREENRETEHHR
HHA BAGTHEA R2E - RAL
AT RATISET OB B T 1R R R
SEZEHBE  ARBAFERBASF
ENHMBHRRLIIRA2RL ¢ BYRE

=y 48
N2

AREE I ARRAC B ERERHFR] K
RETBBUBHRELER - AKEERK
AHERE R RARIERT BB T mE 2R
MR E - B RERUEHR] RRERTR
BB HE AR HHEEXEA LN
BIRRELEATZEERER -

Annual Report 2017
= SR

73



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ —Z—+&F+=-A=+—H It FE

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs, and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise its judgements in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to these financial statements, are disclosed in note 4 to
the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties,
to determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise that
right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEFTBE®E

(Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of
the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that
subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to the owners of the Company.

RERE(E)

HE—FIB AR B KRR 2 e
HERE()EEREZ X FEMZHBR
BB TR E 2 A FE () AN B
ZMBARBEFEMBEHEZMBARZ
ERR T EEREAERRTIE L HEERE
ZER

SEARRRZR S - R RAREE G
BT A - BRIEXZIREBERTIE
REELBRE  BRIARZERERTTIA
HiH - MBARINEBRERVBRRE
o DARE(REAAR SR BB M BBR — 2K

FEE R s 15 X FE AN A B H X Bk IR B A
I AR s - JFERE AR B I
ARKR PR RaEPR I ERANZT
FEREaNFEBEMEMEERAR
25 REFERBRRERNRFER A ZRE
DR RN FREEBALLEE

BakEME2HRAZHD EEBRAR
BIEA ANIEERACR - BRI R g
FERER M AR R IR B AL A BA

ARBR A EEBREIE I B AR
HAERESZBIRBER S (BIAEAR A
FNEFEBENETZRS) AR o ERE
o N IR s 2 FREECAFAE - AR
BRINHT B A P2 ERAHE S BB - SRIEANAE
@m AR RECNREWRKEZAFE
MERZ EMEZRERNEaER - LR
BRAATEEAA °

Annual Report 2017
= SR

75



76
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation

@

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
other comprehensive income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that statement of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

(i)  All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency translation
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired term
of lease and 7 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 years

Office equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents leasehold improvement stated
at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost includes the
costs of leasehold improvements and capitalised interest charges
arising from borrowings used to finance these assets during the
period of construction. No provision for depreciation is made on
construction in progress until such time the relevant assets are
completed and are available for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred to
property, plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance with
the policy as stated in the preceding paragraphs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Other asset

Other asset represents television (“TV”) drama series in production
and is stated at cost incurred to date, less any identified impairment
losses. Costs included all direct costs associated with the
production of TV drama series. Costs are transferred to TV drama
series rights upon completion.

Other asset is stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment loss.

An impairment loss is made when there has been a change in the
estimate used to determine the recoverable amount and the carrying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

Leases
The Group as lessee
()  Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance
leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a finance
lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments,
each determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease payable. Lease
payments are apportioned between the finance charge and
the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge
is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as
owned assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor
Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating
leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance
is the difference between the receivables’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of
the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that
the carrying amount of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FESHBR®
(Continued)
Borrowings -t

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FESTTHEE)
(Continued)
Convertible bonds CIE: 3L

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the bonds
into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion
price are regarded as compound instruments consist of a liability
and an equity component. At the date of issue, the fair value of the
liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest
rate for similar non-convertible debt. The fair value of any derivative
features embedded in the compound instruments is included in
the liability component. The difference between the fair value of
the convertible bonds and the fair values assigned to the liability
component, representing the embedded option for the holder to
convert the bonds into equity of the Group, is included in equity as
convertible bonds equity reserve. The liability component is carried
as a liability at amortised cost using the effective interest method
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components are measured at fair value with gains and losses

recognised in profit or loss.
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equity component is charged directly to equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably.

(@) Hotel operations

Hotel revenue from hotel room and conference room rental is
recognised when the services are rendered.

(b) Membership fee income
The fair value of the consideration received or receivable
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the
membership.

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

Employee benefits
(@ Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave
are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
HhE Bl SR EEAR B PR A A

3. FESHEBE®)

IE=iok

ggl’

Wizt WK EN A TFHERE - X
REBEN SR RAIEBANEE R mE
RRRE P SEMDAT B RS T LARERR -

(@ BEZE

REBEEEREZEHSHEER
R AR TS B AR

b) EEEBRA
EWHERREN D FERSENE
HINIRBEAOERER ©

€ FLEHA

M EMWATE A BRI HRRER o

EEEF
() ESZF/EH

BB FRREHRGKERAER T
RNEERZERHER - AEESHA
EREHREE S RENRBMES
NFEREEMRBRERN G AERE
A

BEENBBEMERTEER  EERE
SEARBRL -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 i E—E—+&+ A =+—H I FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions to
the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents contributions
payable by the Group to the funds.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution retirement
scheme organized by the government in the PRC. The Group
is required to contribute a specific percentage of the payroll
of its employees to the retirement scheme. The contributions
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the retirement scheme. No
forfeited contributions may be used by the employers to
reduce the existing level of contributions.

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring costs
and involves the payment of termination benefits.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(vy The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available
for use are reviewed annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets except deferred
income tax assets and receivables to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pretax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating
unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.
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remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting period or
those that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate
are adjusting events and are reflected in the financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.
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4.

KEY ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

@)

(b)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to those previously
estimated, or it will write-off or writedown technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may be not recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on fair value less
costs of disposal calculations or market valuations. These
calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset value may not
be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal or net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and (jii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial
position and results of the operations.
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4. KEY ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(©

(d

(e

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
based on assessments of the recoverability of the trade and
other receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. The identification of bad and
doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the actual result is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade
and other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year
in which such estimate has been changed. If the financial
conditions of the debtors were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required.

Asset retirement obligations

The Group evaluates and recognises, on a regular basis,
the present value of the obligations which arise from future
reinstatement of leased hotel and office premises upon the
end of lease terms. To establish the present value of the asset
retirement obligations, estimates and judgement are applied
in determining these future cash flows and the discount
rate. Management estimates the future cash flows based on
certain assumptions, such as the restoration costs based on
quotations.

Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E—E—+&+-_A=+—H I FE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables, cash
and bank balances and deposits included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s
financial assets.

In respect of hotel operations, the Group has no concentration
of credit risk in view of its large number of customers. It has
policies in place to ensure that sale of rooms to corporate
customers are made to customers with an appropriate credit
history. Sales to walk-in customers are made via credit cards
or cash.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Rental deposits are mainly paid to seven (2016: six) domestic
private entities who are currently leasing the office, hotel
premises and staff quarter to the Group. Other receivables
primarily represent the amounts due from third and related
parties which have long business relationship with the Group.
Taking into consideration settlements subsequent to year end,
management considers provision for impairment has been
provided appropriately.
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HhE Bl SR EEAR B PR A A

5.

B EEER
AEBREE AT ZIEIEE « INEE,
% ZHRE REBESRER M XRE

oo
ZoN

o AREHEERRE RS FTEINY

BHSH AN - Y SKEEREY
AEEMBRBBETNEE -

(a)

(b)

SRR

AEERINERBRED - TR E
RBNEKRS BEMABEEMN
AEBEERNEERHE - A5E
BRYERINERS - BERBER
MANESIRBGR - AREAST YR
HOMNER - WU ERE BEHE
RINE R -

ERER

T ARR B MO R 2 FRUR M
L FEM IR ~ IR MERTTHERIARIR
TZREEANEERE S REEM
m¥ &= ERRR

SBEELEMS - AR AEEHEBRE
AWETE ALY EEHAETR
@ o AEE D BERBRERAEAE
B EERLMCEEFRHETEH
& o ARBEINERELNHEEN
ERREREBUGK -

BN F REEREEFREE
HRAREENRZRT  #WRER
RITREBERRRER -

HERSTEXNTRAAAZEL
ALz  BENERETIESNL
B(ZF—RF: XA EHLAE
8 o EfEUGIRT ER BRI
SEFERPEBRENE =77 %H
BRI © REBZEFANFLE
BR&EE  EEERA/TEEMIED
ERE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 i E—E—+&+ A =+—H I FE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. IR ERE =)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) REBEZER
The Group’s other borrowings bear interests at fixed interest REBEREMEEABERELTE -
rates and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risk. E e A FEF =R o
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected N B 2 BUR R AREE R IR I K TR HA
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient MEERF K MERERREHS
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short @ WENHESHERARSES
and longer term. =5k o
The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities is as REBCRABGECEBHASTAT ¢
follows:
Total
]
Less than Between 1 Between 2 Undiscounted Carrying
iyear  and2years  and5years  Over5years cash flow amount
RER
—£R -EEWE MEZLE fickiohik:3 RehE REE
HKS$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
B B BT B B B
At31 December 2017 ~ R=B-tE+-A=1-A
Trade and other payables  FETERZ R EtEFFUE 6,760,534 = = = 6,760,534 6,760,534
Borrowings ES - - 20,033,333 - 20,033,333 16,935,781
6,760,534 - 20,033,333 - 26,793,867 23,696,315
Total
et
Less than Between 1 Between 2 Undiscounted Carrying
1 year and 2 years and 5 years Over 5 years cash flow amount
—£R —FEME MEERE BAREF AMBBERE REE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
At31 December2016 ~ R=F-AET=A=+-H
Convertiole bonds ARRER 58,650,000 - - - 58650000 53,152,913
Trade and other payables TR A RE fEFFUR 8,583,968 - - - 8,583,968 8,583,968
67,233,968 - - - 67,233,968 61,736,331

Annual Report 2017
= SR



94

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 5. BIRBRERE®)
(d) Interest rate risk (d) F=Ek

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities except borrowings, the Group’s operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in market interest
rates.

The Group’s borrowings bear interests at fixed interest rates
and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

A A R B S A B AR A
(ERBN) - AREZ @RS
KB EFETSFEED P8 -

AEENESIZEEMEFE - Bt
[EEapNS SRSl

(e) Categories of financial instruments (e) EMIEZSH
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets: ERMEE -
Loans and receivables B R GRIE

(including bank and cash balances) (BBRITRIRBLERR)

11,877,624 34,406,073

Financial liabilities: cEAas:
Financial liabilities at amortised costs 1R SR ANEHEN SR E &

23,696,315 61,736,881

(f) Fair values ()

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of
financial position approximate their respective fair values.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, there were no assets and
liabilities that were measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

The Group has two reportable segments as follows:

—  Hotel operations (the sales of hotel membership cards and
hotel management services income are included in the hotel
operation segment)

- Financial services

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology and marketing
strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 3 to the financial statements. Segment
profits or losses do not include interest income, finance costs,
auditor’s remuneration, legal and professional fee, head office and
corporate expenses.

A

RenMER
A& EHOMIEAR 2HH BT -

- BEEEE(AEERRHEENBEEE
I AR B WA TR AVE JE 2 E ) B8P
D)

- SRR

NEE 2 7] 23D EP TR R E R & AR
152 RES RIS EAL o AR S EBERT
B2 Bl R T 5 HE RS BRI 2D
To{ERE R o

R B & ETBUR BB 75 R MY RE AT
M2 BETBRE— - D EHBERTREN
BUWA - BERA - ZBENE  5ER
BXER  ARFREREEMRX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E—E—+&+-_A=+—H I FE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The segment information for the reportable segments for the year is

A

6. R&EHIER &)

REZ R 2D B D BERFSIT

as follows:
Hotel Financial
operations services Total
EEEE S EARE waE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BIT BT BIT

For the year ended BE=-Z—+tH5+=A

31 December 2017 =+—HLEEE
Revenue from external customers R BMNRE P 2 Yz 16,281,691 = 16,281,691
Segment loss DEDEE (1,560,008) (727,480) (2,287,488)
Depreciation of property, plant ~ #1% - = KR ETE

and equipment 2,546,350 - 2,546,350
Written off of property, WEHMZE -~ B K&

plant and equipment 1,677,105 - 1,677,105
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEMB A alAkE 2,008,866 - 2,008,866
For the year ended BE-—ZE—~E+=A2

31 December 2016 =t+—HLEEE
Revenue from external customers 2K B4MNEEF 2 Wz 17,654,630 = 17,654,630
Segment loss HENEE (59,123,659) - (59,123,659)
Depreciation of property, plant %1% - = R EEITE

and equipment 2,180,806 - 2,180,806
Impairment of property, plant Yz - BB KRR ERE

and equipment 597,891 - 597,891
Impairment of other receivables — Efth fEU N IBIRE 18,700,000 - 18,700,000
Written off of property, plant WEHMZE -~ B K&

and equipment 29,379,804 - 29,379,804
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

A reconciliation of segment results to loss before income tax is
provided as follows:

KEDIER (#)

7 BB AE BB AT B IR 2 SRR E SN

2017 2016

—E—+tF TE—RF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Total loss of reportable segments A2/ H M EERE (2,287,488) (59,123,659)
Unallocated corporate expenses, net KOS H5E (36,110,576) (35,312,674)
Interest income FE U A 3,739 3,808
Finance costs BE RS (7,442,204) (6,057,522)
Loss before tax FRAAIE 1R (45,836,529)  (100,490,047)

Revenue from major customers:

All revenue was derived from external customers in the PRC during
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. No revenue derived
from one customer represent 10% or more of the revenue of the
Group for each of the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The total of non-current assets other than deferred tax assets
and rental deposits located in Hong Kong and the PRC were
HK$2,958,418 (2016: HK$6,747,782) and HK$32,622,049 (2016:
HK$35,987,371), respectively.

REXTERF 20

REZE_ZE—tFER_ZT—X<F+=A
=t+—HIFE ' FrER=EHREPBEHD
INRBE o WER — R RPEEMKESL
REBREBEE-_T—+tER_T—RF
T A=+—HLEFESFRER10%K
PAE -

UREBRPBEMIETRBEELEA(T
BRECHRBEERTEERS) DA
2,958,418 8 7L (= Z —/)NF © 6,747,782
BT ) &32,622,0498 L (=T — /R F .
35,987,371 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ —Z—+&F+=-A=+—H It FE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(Continued)

Revenue from major customers: (Continued)

Breakdown of revenue from all activities is as follows:

KEDIER (#)

RETEEF2WE : (&)
PR EE R PRAE DI T

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Sales from hotel operations — R B SR —

hotel room rental and conference BIEEEES &

room rental eREHS 16,281,691 17,574,170
Sales of hotel membership cards BIE2EREE - 80,460
16,281,691 17,654,630

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

7. RERAFX(BERESHFM)

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Salaries, wages and allowances e - L& KERL 19,652,321 19,908,119
Pension obligations RIKESEME 1,064,263 1,612,485
Other benefits Hh s 887,859 70,809
21,604,443 21,691,413
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 i E—E—+&+ A =+—H I FE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

(@) The emoluments of each director were as follows:

8. EEHM

(a) BESZHMESIWMT :

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary schemes
Fees Inducement in kind bonuses contribution Total
e 2N Bife
e ®Be  RENEF WAL HEER a5
Notes HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
it BT BT B B B B
Year ended 31 December 2017 EZ=-E-t§
T=A=t-ALFR
Executive directors: HTEE:
Huang Yun BE 1,028,387 - - - - 1,028,387
Min Zhi Dong KR )] 1,424,906 - - - - 1,424,906
Ye Shusheng WA () - - - - - -
Wu Li Xin RUF (© 3,307,691 - - - - 3,307,601
Dai Lifeng Y S (d 720,000 - - - - 720,000
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Chung Wai Man EEX &) 574,286 - - - - 574,286
Lu Zefeng 63 i} 1,200,000 - - - - 1,200,000
Independent non-executive ~ BYFHTEE
directors:
Tso Hon Sai, Bosco EEE 120,000 - - - - 120,000
Cheng Chal Fu Ly 0 97419 - - - - 97419
Leung Siu Hong Dk 0 22,903 - - - - 22,903
Wong Yiu Ki, Emest SR n) 120,000 - - - - 120,000
8,615,592 - - - - 8615592
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ —Z—+&F+=-A=+—H It FE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8. EEFHM =
(a) The emoluments of each director were as follows: (a) BEZBZ2HMEBHIWT : (&)
(Continued)
Salaries,

allowances Pension

and benefits  Discretionary schemes
Fees  Inducement inkind Bonuses  contribution Total

e 2 il
e ®E@e  RENEN il STEIH ag
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
i3 BT BT BT BT BT BT

Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ=-F-1F

tZA=+-HLEE
Executive directors: HTEE:
Huang Yun 5Z 720,000 - - - - 720,000
Wu Li Xin RUH (© 911,097 930,521 - - - 1,841,618
Dai Lifeng S d 518,000 8 8 s S 518,000
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Lu Zefeng 6343 il 54,839 - - - - 54,839
Law Fei Shing i) (0 671,081 - - - 17,952 689,033

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE .

directors:

Tso Hon Sal, Bosco i 120,000 - - - - 120,000
Leung Siu Hong PR ) 120,000 - - - - 120,000
Wong Yiu Kt Emest M n) 20,000 - - - - 20,000
Chung Wai Man EEX 0) 100,000 - - - - 100,000

3,235,017 930,521 = = 17,962 4183490
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 i E—E—+&+ A =+—H I FE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@) The emoluments of each director were as follows:
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 1 April 2017, Min Zhi Dong was appointed as an executive
director of the Group.

On 15 December 2017, Ye Shusheng was appointed as
executive director and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the
Group.

Wau Li Xin was appointed as CEO and executive director of
the Group on 11 November 2016 and resigned as CEO and
executive director of the Group on 30 November 2017.

On 12 April 2016, Dai Lifeng was appointed as executive director
of the Group.

Chung Wai Man was appointed as non-executive director of
the Group on 13 February 2017 and resigned as non-executive
director of the Group on 30 November 2017.

On 15 December 2016, Lu Zefeng was appointed as non-
executive director of the Group and Law Fei Shing resigned as
independent non-executive director of the Group.

On 9 March 2017, Leung Siu Hong resigned as an independent
non-executive director and Cheng Chai Fu was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Group.

On 11 November 2016, Wong Yiu Kit, Emest was appointed as
independent non-executive director of the Group.

Chung Wai Man was appointed as independent non-executive
directors of the Group on 25 June 2015 and resigned on
1 November 2016.

During the years ended 31 December 2017, HK$nil (2016:
HK$930,521 was paid by the Group to Wu Li Xin) was paid by
the Group to any of the directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group and no (2016: nil) inducement paid by
the Group to any of the directors as compensation for loss of
office.

8. EEHMN~=
(a) RESZHFMEINOT : (&)

Hist

(@)

R-E—+FMOA—R  BERE
RERAEEHATES -

RZZE—+F+=—A+HH - "
EEZER/REEATES RITK
R (TR ) -

RIFN_F—RF+—A+—H
BREAARSETREERRTE
EYR_F—tF+—A=1TH#E
EASETRERSATES -

RIE—RFOA+-H  BIE
BLRERAEERTESE -

BEYN-T—tE-A+=AE
EEATEBFRTEELN T
—tF+— A=+ ARIAEEE
HITHE -

R-B—AFT-A+EHA B2
WEE (T AREBIHTES TR
BB EAR BB IFNTES -

R=B—LF=ANRA - REEE
ERILINTERTBABEEE
RAKEBIINTEE -

RZTB—RF+—A+—H =ik
BERERAEEB IFNTES °

BEXN-_Z-—HFA-+ER
BEZERAEEBILIFNTEEL
R-TB—RFE+—H—H#E°

RBEE_ZT—t&+_A=+—HItF
8 RNEBI KR AEMRE S HERR
HEAMASKMARE BRI EE(=ZZ
— N AREE MR Y X 14930,521 7%
T0)  ARAEBEL R EEMEES HE
MFIE(ZZ—NF  8)EABBEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8. EEHM=

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEEREHAL

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included four (2016: two) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of
the remaining one (2016: three) individual is set out below:

FA - AEERERSFALEED
H(ZE—AF  BMREF Ben
EX2FZ2oMHPRER - HER—H
“E-RE I ZR) AL ET
L

2017 2016
—E—tF AN
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Salaries, wages and allowances e TENER 1,970,000 4,816,667
Pension obligations BRINSEE 18,000 54,000
1,988,000 4,870,667
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e EE AT

Number of individuals

AB
2017 2016
—E—+F —F—F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 752 1,500,000/ 7T = 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 752,000,000/ 7T 1 2
1 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
highest paid individuals of the Group as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group and no emoluments were paid by
the Group as compensation for loss of office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. HAA
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—R
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Bank interest income RITHEHA 3,739 3,808
Income from TV drama series EREIUWA 66,263 309,696
Food and beverage B R 170,797 224,561
Waiver of other payable A H A fE S FRIE 378,510 =
Others EAh, 430,564 513,798
1,049,873 1,051,863
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. R & A A
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERKADITAT
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—R
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Finance cost on asset retirement e EEERERR
obligations BhE A 190,469 184,098
Interest on borrowings BEERFE 435,781 =
Imputed interest costs on convertible AT #AR% {555 FE 53 Fl &,
bonds (B %N 8,165,114 5,969,397
8,791,364 6,153,495
Amount capitalised B e (1,349,160) (95,973)
7,442,204 6,057,522
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT 1. FIEHIER
2017 2016
—B—+F —T—R
HK$ HKS
BT PBIT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ BIHAR{ 18 — FEFEH
Under-provision in prior year BEFERETE 415,473 -
Deferred income tax (Note 18) BIEFTS A (F1eE18) (824,009) (2,200,814)

(408,536) (2,200,814)

The Group is not subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands and the

British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since the Group
has no assessable profit for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016. The amount provided for the year ended 31 December
2017 was calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) based on the

assessable profit for the year.

No provision for PRC corporate income tax is required since the
Group has no assessable profit for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016. The amount provided for the year ended 31
December 2017 was provided at the rate of 25% (2016: 25%) for

the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% — =

—tF T A=+ HALFE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product
of loss before tax multiplied by tax rates applicable to profit or loss

in the respective countries is as follows:

11.

BHIKR2)

PSTLR S BB B AT 1R SR B AR & B
IR R 2 RABEERRINT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$ HKS$
BT BIT
Loss before taxation BRA AT SR (45,836,529)  (100,490,047)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates ZEARNS BB EH
applicable to profits or loss in the HEFTERFIA
respective countries (6,926,276) (19,947,420)
Tax effect of expenses that are not TAHBRAZ RIS E
deductible 7,206,280 15,685,581
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERFIBE B BE £ 1,867,823 3,423,178
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses ez ﬁHIJﬁiﬁg R IR &R
not previously recognised MBS E (2,823,960) (109,060)
Tax effect of income not taxable 3%3\1«,5 B N Y= (132,982) (567)
Tax loss previously recognised and BRI BT IEEE
reversed 294,256 -
Under/(over) provision in prior years LARTEEBHE TR, (FBEaRE) 57,415 (1,343,360)
Unrecognised temporary difference RERE R EE 48,908 90,834
Income tax credit ST % (408,536) (2,200,814)
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e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E—E—+&+-_A=+—H I FE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the

12. X EEFHE

AEBNARFE 2 BRIEMR,GTA)

following: THIEE 27 :
2017 2016
B+ —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Auditor’s remuneration* R G o 1,000,000 1,000,000
Depreciation of property, plant and M - WERZETE

equipment 4,773,982 4,211,016
Minimum lease payment under LEHERERENK

operating lease 14,724,858 11,832,887
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss* FEH (as),  EiBFeE (3,244) 82
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEEB ATz Was (2,008,866) =
Gain on disposal of property, plant, HEME - BENEE

and equipment* 2 Wz - 611)
Share-based payment arising from the 277 A[#RAREHE A ~

issue of convertible bonds VARG AR A EERE 2 53R - 1,485,008
Impairment of property, plant and Mm% - BWE&RERE

equipment (Note (a)) (P 5E(@)) - 597,891
Impairment of other receivables E b e IB R E - 18,700,000
Written off of property, plant and MEHMZE -~ BB KA

equipment (Note (a)) (M¥5E(a)) 1,677,105 29,379,804
Written off of prepaid operating leases i #4578 (48 & & (M=% (b))

(Note (b)) - 8,931,190
Written off of rental deposits* WiEE &k e - 449,464
Written off of prepayments (Note (@)  #is5TERT 3B (M 5E@)) - 1,100,000
Notes: MizE -

(@ During the year ended 31 December 2017, leasehold improvement @ BE-_T—+tE+-_A=1+—HILEE"

of HK$1,677,105 was written off as a result of the replacement of old
renovation by new renovation in one hotel.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, construction in progress
of HK$29,379,804 and prepayment of HK$1,100,000 were written off
as a result of the termination of developments of two hotels. Property,
plant and equipment amount to HK$597,891 were impaired in
respected to one budget hotel in PRC is foreseed to make loss in the
future.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the written off of prepaid
operating leases of HK$8,931,190 were written off as a result of the
termination on one hotel.

These items are included in “Other operating expenses” of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

13. DIVIDEND

The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of
any dividend for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

14. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners
of the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$45,356,200 (2016:
HK$98,289,233) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 405,862,605 (2016: 393,525,000) in issue during the
year.

Diluted loss per share

As the exercise of the Group’s outstanding of convertible
bonds for the year ended 31 December 2016 would be
anti-dilutive and there was no dilutive potential ordinary shares
for the Company’s outstanding options for the year ended
31 December 2016 and 2017, the diluted loss per share is
same as basic loss per share for both years.

13. R&

REBEE_ZT—+t&FE_ZF—X F+_HA
=+—HIEFE  EEHMEERRMEEM

BB o

(a)

(b)

- BRER

BRELFEE

AR RS A B ERE A BB
BHERARRREE AERAFE
[E51845,356,200/8 T ( =& — /)N
98,289,233/ 870 ) M A AN FE B 31T
T E AR NN RE 15 20405,862,6050% (=
T—7N4  393,525,000/%) °

BREFER

ARBE—_T—R"F+-_HA=1+—H
LIFEFERITHEARRERARITE 2 AR
BEARRESERABMERHEAL
AlZ MATTEBIRE BT E R
B BMEE_T-RER-F—+F
ToA=t—BLEFEZEREEES
BESREANEBERR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% — =

—tF T A=+ —RALFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - BEKRZRE
Leasehold  Furniture and Office Motor  Construction
improvements fixtures  equipments vehicles  in progress Total
AENEEE  BHREE  BOERE i ERIE it
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
itz B B BT BT BT BT
COST: A
1 January 2016 R-E-~F-F—H 12061100 5308211 2,503,541 - 29079807 49872749
Addtions HE He 777 233,565 45,051 703755 91599 2315077
Disposal i3 - (7,330 - - - (7,330)
Writen off s ) - - - - (29379804 (29,379,804)
Exchange realignment S (502,176) (339,39) (89,269) = (600,093)  (1,530,928)
31 December 2016 and R-E-NET-A=1-H
1 January 2017 R-E—+F-F-H 11,975,701 5215050 2459329 703,755 915929 21,269,764
Additions hE 232,000 11,189 4801 - BE9204 77T 214
Transfer &y 9,445,133 - - - (045133 -
Witten off s 6] (3378979 - - = - [3378979)
Exchange reaignment [ERA% 171,666 208,612 63,380 - = 463,658
At 31 December 2017 R-E-tE+-A=1-R 18445521 5454851 2,527,530 703,755 - 21,131,657
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Z:HHTERGE :
AND IMPAIRMENT:
1 January 2016 R=E—E-A-H 2054545 3828980 1010574 - - 7794099
Oharge for the year Rz 3,413,650 341,033 327,311 129,022 - 4211016
Eliminated on disposal HEH - (611) - - - (611)
Impairment loss for the year ERREER b) 563,387 22,939 11,565 = = 597,891
Exchange reaignment i3k (84,562) (329,209) (85,955) - - (499,740)
At 31 December 2016 and 50_7 —NEFZA=1-H
1 January 2017 R-E-+%5-f-H 6847020 3863118 1263495 129022 - 1210265
Charge for the year ERR 3978435 347,198 307,598 140,751 - 4TI398
Eliminated on written off s 0] (1,701,874) - - - - (1701874
Bxchange realignment [Era% 91,215 211,887 61,325 - - 364,427
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZB=1-R 9214796 4422203 1,632,418 269,773 - 15539,190
CARRYING AMOUNTS: R
At 31 December 2017 R-E-+E+-A=+-A 9230725 1,032,648 895,112 433,982 - 11,592,467
At 31 December 2016 RZE-A"ETZA=1-H 5,128,681 12351932 1,195,834 574,733 915929 9,167,109

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

@)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, construction in
progress of HK$29,379,804 were written off as a result of the
termination of developments of two hotels.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the group
had impaired property, plant and equipment amount to
HK$597,891 due to an operating budgeted hotel in PRC
expected to make loss in the future years.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, leasehold
improvement of HK$1,677,105 was written off as a result of
the replacement of old renovation by new renovation in one
hotel.

During the year, the Group had capitalised borrowing costs
amounting to HK$1,349,160 (2016: HK$95,973) (Note 10) on
qualifying assets.

15. Y% - MERKRE 2

@)

HE—_Z—R"Et+t-A=1+—HI*F
B BRKRIERZEMEEE - MEsE
3T F229,379,80478 7T °

HE_ZT—R"F+-A=+—HILHF
& AR AR EIR —EEE P RK
EREEEEN B R EE LIRSS
WAL BB HYZE - BE &EEEL
SREB97,8917B 7T °

HE_T—+tF+-A=+—HILHF
B AREF—EBEENERER
WRIRETE - WEEHEMEEE
1,677,105/ 7T °

RAFEE  REBERAEREE
ERCIEERKAN,349,160/8 L (=&
— 7N 95,9737 L) (FizE10) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% — =

—tF T A=+ —RALFE

16. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 16. EIRIE - RERHMEWR
RECEIVABLES 15
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Notes HK$ HK$
b BT BIT
Prepayments and deposit paid ENRERENES
Prepayment SEUNEOE] (a) 511,725 7,180,044
Deposits paid Bfi&ES (o) 23,988,000 23,988,000
Others EAh, 113,114 762,008
24,612,839 31,930,052
Deposits Be
Rental deposits HEZe 3,525,878 3,241,518
Other receivables Hith e k18 (© 205,887 21,000,000
Total prepayments, deposits TERFIE -~ e Kk
and other receivables ﬁﬁﬂriuﬁz KIBABFE 28,344,604 56,171,570
The amounts of prepayments, TEFIE - e Rk
deposits and other receivables ﬁ@ﬁ%m
are analysed as follows: SEAT -
Non-current portions ERBT D
Deposits paid Eﬁﬁﬁz% 23,988,000 23,988,000
Rental deposits HEZe 1,574,898 3,241,518
Prepayment and other receivables TR RO K E A e Y5k IE - 7,180,044
25,562,898 34,409,562
Current portions RENE D
Prepayments and deposit paid BNFAREMNZRS 624,839 762,008
Rental deposits HEZRS 1,950,980 —
Other receivables H A WK1 205,887 21,000,000
2,781,706 21,762,008
28,344,604 56,171,570
Notes: Bt
(@ As at 31 December 2016, the amount of HK$7,180,044 represented @ RZZFE—R"E+=A8 E +
the payments for enhancements for the PRC budget hotels. 7, 1%0 0447 7T BB R E @E E’J
Hom o
(o)  The amount of HK$23,988,000 represented deposit paid for proposed (o) 23,988,0005%71?%@%% KiE—BIE51%
acquisition of 51% equity interest in a hotel. After the reporting period, BHEMEMIES - REHFR  AEEE

the Group demanded refund and received the refund in February 2018.

The Group is still in negotiation of the proposed acquisition.

(¢) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the amount of
HK$21,000,000 represented refundable deposits paid for leasehold

improvement and were refunded in January 2017.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 E2 —Z—+tF+_-_A=+—HIFE

17. OTHER ASSET 7. 5B EE
HK$
BIT
COST: R :
At 1 January 2016 R-T—XRE—HF—H 1,440,000
Additions NE 1,440,000
At 31 December 2016, 1 January 2017 RNoE— /\¢+ A=+—H" —t&F
and 31 December 2017 —A—BRk=ZZE—+FF+=-HA= + = 2,880,000
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION: RSty .
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—XF—HA—H =
Charge for the year FAETR 480,000
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 R-ZE—ARF+_A=1+—H8xK
—E—+F—H—H 480,000
Charge for the year FRFHE 2,400,000
At 31 December 2017 R—E—+tF+-_A=+—H 2,880,000
CARRYING AMOUNTS: ARMEE
At 31 December 2017 RN_E—tF+-_A=+—H =
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—ARF+-_A=+—H 2,400,000

The amount represents an investment in production of a TV drama
series.

(@ During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has
signed an agreement with an independent third party at a
total contract amount of HK$2,880,000 (representing a 20%
interest in the right on the TV drama series). During the year
ended 31 December 2016, the interest in the right on the TV
drama series changed to 25%. The copyright and ancillary
income expected to be generated from this TV drama series
would, after deducting the relevant expenses, be allocated to
the Group by the interest of such investment.

ZEBERESUE—MERBEBNRE

@)

BEZ—AFT+_A=1T—HIEF
B AEBRHE 2B IE=HER]
— D% - A4S % /2,880,000
B (REREREER Z#EF|HR
20% M) c NEE-ZT—XRF+=
A=+—RHItFE  NEBEREE
Bl 2 #E R R Fr{h#Em & R25% © /41
BIEFER%Z - BB REERTE
AR RRAE R E AR A IR 2 IR E 2 1
BB T AER o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E—E—+&+-_A=+—H I FE

18. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS 18. BIEFFIEHREE
The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised by the TXYAAEEERNEEZRLEHIBEE -
Group.
Decelerated
tax
depreciation Provisions Tax loss Total
ERBIRTE B BEEE e
HK$ HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT AT
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—-H—H 196,349 989,788 - 1,186,137
Credited/(debited) to profit or loss  FERE A/ (15 )z
for the year (Note 11) (PfF3E11) 1,002,778 (126,560) 1,324,596 2,200,814
Exchange differences b =% (61,425) (79,261) (58,894) (199,580)
At 31 December 2016 RIZE—RF+_A=T—HK
and 1 January 2017 —T—+F—H—H 1,137,702 783,967 1,265,702 3,187,371
Credited/(debited) to profit or FREEA/ (18 )8B%
loss for the year (Note 11) (PzE11) 237,630 (172,715) 759,094 824,009
Exchange differences b 5 =% 95,853 52,043 127,238 275,134
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+=-A=+—H 1,471,185 663,295 2,152,034 4,286,514

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. As of 31 December
2017, the Group does not recognise deferred income tax assets
of HK$5,974,739 (2016: HK$8,452,403) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$31,672,700 (2016: HK$38,223,872) that can be
carried forward against taxable income. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are losses of HK$8,808,743 (2016: HK$25,240,752) that
will expire in 2022 (2016: 2021). Other tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings
of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised is HK$305,941 (2016: HK$439,911). No liability has
been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group
is in a position to control the timing of reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that such differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19.

The majority of the Group’s revenue from hotel operations are
made via credit cards or cash. Hotel rooms are rented to corporate
customers with an appropriate credit history on credit terms of
30 days upon acceptance of services by the customers. Trade
receivables of HK$57,122 (2016: HK$17,805) were past due but not
impaired. Management considered that no recoverability problem on
these trade balances as a result of subsequent settlement received
up to the date of this report and the agreement of the revised
repayment schedule with certain trade debtors.

J& W B X

AEBRBEEEREEZAEARHIR
SHEE -  AEB AL BEEEREND
ERFRERFPESRSEE=TROEE
EEHEEEEH - BWRERRS7,1225 7T
TE—NF 17,805 L) DA AT
ERE - EEERE  AREBEARER
HEWBHGEEZE  WEEEFRE
TREWE BRI 2 KUS FT R BT IR 1
= RSB SABNIREI IR E -

2017 2016
—E—tF —F—R
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Trade receivables JEUBR TR 268,265 64,555

The aging analysis of these trade receivables based on past due
date is as follows:

%5 IR 2 BRER IR B HIE ;B S A 4n
T

2017 2016

—E—tF —F—R
HK$ HKS$
BT BIT
Neither past due nor impaired e HA R 211,143 46,750
0 — 30 days past due BHI0EZ0K 1,512 1,017
31 - 60 days past due A EI31 £60K - 848
61 — 90 days past due #HAI61 Z90K 935 -
91 — 120 days past due #HIQ1 =120k 33,134 431
121 — 365 days past due #HA121 2365k 21,541 15,509
57,122 17,805
268,265 64,555
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E—E—+&+-_A=+—H I FE

20. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 20. AR ES

114

The convertible bonds (the “Bonds”) were issued on 14 June
2016. The Bonds were extended for one year on 14 June 2017
(the original due date of the Bonds) to 14 June 2018. The Bonds
are convertible into ordinary shares of the Company at any time
between the date of issuance of the Bonds and the business day
immediately prior to the maturity date (i.e. one year from the date of
extension of the Bonds or if such date is not a business day the next
business day). The face value of the Bonds is HK$51,000,000. The
Bonds are convertible to 54,838,708 shares per HK$0.93 bond.

If the Bonds have not been converted, the Company will pay to
the holders of the Bonds an amount equal to the aggregate of (i)
100% of the principal amount of the Bonds outstanding; (i) interest
accrued and outstanding pursuant to terms and conditions of the
Bonds; and (jii) a premium of 7% per annum of the principal amount
of the Bonds outstanding. Interest of 8 per cent will be paid annually
up until that the business day immediately prior to the maturity date
(i.e. one year from the date of issuance of the Bonds or if such date is
not a business day, the next business day).

If the maturity date is extended or postponed pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the Bonds, upon maturity of the Bonds on such
extended maturity date, the Company will pay to the holders of
the Bonds an amount equal to the aggregate of () 100% of the
principal amount of the Bonds outstanding; (i) interest accrued and
outstanding pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Bonds;
and (iii) a premium of 15% of the principal amount of the Bonds
outstanding.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ —Z—+&F+=-A=+—H It FE

20. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 20. IR ES (&)

On 15 September 2017, Bonds with nominal value of RZE—+tFNLAT+HHB  HE
HK$33,400,000 were converted into 35,913,978 ordinary shares 33,400,000/ T M (E A RN (E0.937E 7T
with conversion price of HK$0.93. #i535,013,978 % L iBA% o

On 29 November 2017, Bonds with nominal value of RZE—+tF+—A=+NB "E
HK$17,600,000 were converted into 18,924,730 ordinary shares 17,600,000 7T Y & 5 #2 ¥ AR (B 0.937 7T
with conversion price of HK$0.93. i 518,924, 730/ L BA% o

Mr. Ding Yifan, the controlling shareholder of the Company, RARIERRR T — L EEERAQFIR
guaranteed the due payment of all sums expressed to be payable BESFZIGRRIEGRIRIET — L EE
by the Company under the terms and conditions of the Bonds and B E A B RE BT RIS BFTE RE -

pursuant to a personal guarantee given by Mr. Ding Yifan.

The movement of the liability component of the Bonds for the years BHFAGBHXOIRBE_ZE—AFR=F
ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 are set out below: —+tF+-A=1+—RHIEFENEFHHT
AT
2017
—E—+F

HK$

BT
Fair value of the Bonds issued BEETEAFATE 52,485,008
Issue cost BT (1,000,000)
Equity component D (4,301,492)
Liability component at date of issue RETREZBEED 47,183,516
Interest charged (Note 10) FBZ T (H1EE10) 5,969,397
Liability component at 31 December 2016 RZBE—ARFE+ZA=+—HK

and 1 January 2017 —E—+F—-A—HZzaEHD 53,152,913

Interest charged (Note 10) B (F3E10) 8,165,114
Interest paid BERFE (5,409,052)
Converted to shares during the year F IR AR (55,908,975)
Liability component at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=A=+—RHZBEHS =
The interest charged for the year is calculated by applying an NEFZBBEHD 2F B B TR ERF %=
effective interest rate of 14.88% per cent (2016: 22.88 per cent) to 14.88%(=F—7 4 | 22.88% )5t &

the liability component.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. BERA KR M ESFIE
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —EF—RF
HK$ HK$
BT PEIT
Trade payables FETHRER 312,741 218,855
Accruals and other payables FEFTIE B R E A FES FRIE 7,419,342 9,577,749
7,732,083 9,796,604

The aging analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date is as

FEMBRRERNER BN REITIT

follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —F—
HK$ HK$
BT BT
0 - 30 days 0E30X 291,825 155,256
31 - 60 days 31E60K 10,764 34,054
61 — 90 days 61E90K 7,751 10,669
Over 90 days HBE90K 2,401 18,876
312,741 218,855
Accruals and other payables are analysed as follows: FESTIE B K H b fE 15 2B ) 9 T E 51 2R
T
2017 2016
—E—+iF —E—REF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Accruals FEStIEE
Accrued staff costs JESTE TR 705,461 2,775,644
Accrued audit and professional fee REEE 3 1,280,000 1,205,023
Accrued effective rental payable BT BB S E A 769,333 1,203,757
2,754,794 5,184,424
Other payables HithpEFFR1E
Other tax payables HAb 7RI 3,329,773 3,194,528
Payables to hotel constructors JEHE S i T A B 0B 378,510 757,020
Receipt in advance TEWGRIE 202,216 8,879
Others Hib 754,049 432,898
4,664,548 4,393,325
Total accruals and other payables FE&t18 B & HAbFE( FRIBH A 7,419,342 9,577,749

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% — =

22. PROVISION FOR ASSET RETIREMENT

Under the terms of the tenancy agreements signed with landlords,
the Group shall vacate and re-instate the leased hotel and office
premises at the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant tenancy
agreements in 1 to 5 years (2016: 1 to 3 years). Provision is
therefore made for the best estimate of the expected reinstatement

—tF T A=+ HALFE

22, {BEEEFREE

REBEZXERTOHEE RGN - ARE
AREAEERSIER(—ZRF)(=F
—ANF o —EZF)ERRALAKELE
Pt MR RAEEBE MR AEYE - Atk
E S TR HIE A & R AN ARG T B &t

costs to be incurred. Movements of provision for asset retirement EITRE  WMEBEEAEERBENEZDHN
are as follows: T
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
HK$ HKS$
BT BIT
At 1 January R—A—H 3,795,516 3,959,157
Addition N 232,000 -
Finance cost on asset retirement WEEEEREERD
obligations (Note 10) BERA(H1EE10) 190,469 184,098
Exchange differences fEH =5 294,650 (347,739)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 4,512,635 3,795,516
Less: non-current portion AL : FEBNHEAER S (4,280,635) (3,135,871)
Current portion BNHEAER 2 232,000 659,645
23. BORROWINGS 23. &8
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Borrowings repayable on 1 June 2020 R —ZF = ZF XA —HIEBEM(EE 6,280,000 =
Borrowings repayable on ER=ZE=_ZF\A=++tH
27 August 2020 = EE’HE = 5,651,398 -
Borrowings repayable on JER—Z—F ¢+ A=++H
27 December 2020 BEMEE 5,004,383 —
16,935,781 -
As at 31 December 2017, the Group has borrowings of R—ZE—tF+-_A=+—8 ' x5H

HK$16,500,000 from and HK$435,781 interest payables to
China Medical Overseas Limited, a controlling shareholder of the
Company. The borrowings are unsecured, interest bearing of 8%

per annum and repayable on maturity.

BAKEPEZEBINGRAR(ANAE
72 % AR B ) 2 15 B 16,500,000 7T M & 1+F
ZA R B435,7818 7T » B AEIR
- BEFIR%TERERE B EE »
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RE MR M
For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ —Z—+&F+=-A=+—H It FE
24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, R
Number of
Shares Amount
BoEE &8
Notes HK$
Bt BIT
Authorised: JATE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 HRXE(E0.0178 T
(2016: HK$0.01) each (Z=—7R%F 1 0.01%87T)
Y AR
At 1 January 2016, RZZT—XR"F—H—A8 "
31 December 2016, —E-RETZA=T—
1 January 2017 and H —=2—+tF—H—
31 December 2017 HRZZE—+F+H
=7—E 780,000,000 7,800,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAR
At 1 January 20186, R=ZE—XRF—H—H8 =
31 December 2016 T—RE+=ZA=1+—H
and 1 January 2017 F—ZE—+F—H—H 393,525,000 3,935,250
Issue of shares arising SR (ESEERRITIRGD
from conversion of the Bonds (@),(b) 54,838,708 548,387
At 31 December 2017 RZT—+F
+=A=+—H 448,363,708 4,483,637

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
e M RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B EZ —Z—+&F+=-A=+—H It FE

24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(@ On 15 September 2017, the Bonds with nominal value of
HK$33,400,000 were converted into 35,913,978 ordinary shares with
conversion price of HK$0.93 per bond. Amount of HK$359,140 and
HK$38,870,997 were recorded in share capital and share premium
respectively.

(b) On 29 November 2017, the Bonds with nominal value of
HK$17,600,000 were converted into 18,924,730 ordinary shares with
conversion price of HK$0.93 per bond. Amount of HK$189,247 and
HK$20,791,083 were recorded in share capital and share premium
respectively.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the payment of
dividends, issue new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts,
redeem existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted
capital. Net debt is calculated as total debts less cash and cash
equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity
(i.e. share capital, share premium and other reserves) and includes
some forms of subordinated debts.

24, [RA ()

BiE

@ RZFTE—CtFNLA+ER BE
33,400,000/ T fEH R R ETRE
#0.93/8 812 435,913,978 X L% o
359,140/ 7t 538,870,997 7T 7 Bl &t A
BRAS R AR AR R (8

) R=ZZF—tF+—A=+NHB BE
17,600,0007 7t #) (& F IR 1R AR (B B R &
£0.93/8 812 518,924, 73008 L A% o
189,247 7 7T % 20,791,083/ 7t 2 AlET A
AR R AR AD R (8

AEBEREEN BRI REAEE LMK
BEE WABBLEARBHERGTR
REAER

AEEZREPIRERREATHE - ARE
BREEARGRE  YREEEN N LA
BERBSENSBCMAE - BT RN
HBENER  AEEAEEABKREX
- BT - R - BARE
BORAEHLLEEENRDET

AEERBEEEEAEGEA L KRES
BR - ZLhEXBABFERAFARRE
AFTS o E1@$B&Ffwﬁmﬁﬁ&
REEEWTE - ABRBRERAEIER
(Wk$~h@mﬁ&/W%%@W'ﬁ
BREERAARRES o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #E—E—+&+-_A=+—H I FE

25. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 25. AR R B ISR ORI/
THE COMPANY
2017 2016
—E—+tF —F—K
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIKE 11,533,912 35,149,168
Rental deposits HEZS - 1,794,895
11,533,912 36,944,063
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other deposit TR RIBEREMIES 162,008 445,600
Rental deposits HEZS 1,794,895 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 320,618 216,369
2,277,521 661,969
Current liabilities REEME
Convertible bonds AR ES - 53,152,913
Due to subsidiaries RN NGIE e 16 23
Accruals and other payables FERT & R R E AR FRIE 1,638,713 1,047,200
1,638,729 54,200,136
Net current assets/(liabilities) BREEE (AE) 638,792 (53,538,167)
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
borrowings BE 16,935,781 —
Net liabilities 8EFE (4,763,077) (16,594,104)
EQUITY R
Share capital [N 4,483,637 3,935,250
Reserves i (9,246,714) (20,529,354)
Total deficit AL EE (4,763,077)  (16,594,104)

R-_E-N\F-ALtRABEZRSHERK

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

7 March 2018. T -
Approved by: AT ALTEL
Huang Yun Ye Shusheng
HE M4
Director Director
3 EE

120 Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 E2 —Z—+tF+_-_A=+—HIFE

26. RESERVES 26. f# 1@
(@) Group (a) &~&£H
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein rEERFRENSBREEINGEE
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss m R EHAMEEBARAREGEERE
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement FERAFFIR ©

of changes in equity.

(b) Company (b) &=AF]
Convertible
Share bonds equity Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
ARRES
RDEE EEfkE G| okl
(Note (c)(i) (Note (c)(iv)
(FizE()) (FizE()iv)
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
o BT BT BT
At 1 January 2016 RZE—~F—A—8 204,694,080 - (106,241,685) 98,452,395
Loss for the year FABE - - (123,283241)  (123,283,241)
Issue of convertible bonds BT HRRES - 4,301,492 - 4,301,492
At 31 December 2016 and RZZE—RF+-A
1 January 2017 =+—B8k
—Z—+%—Hf—H 204,694,080 4301492  (229524,926)  (20,529,354)
Loss for the year FABRE - — (44077,948)  (44,077,948)
Conversion of convertible bonds BIATARES 59,662,080 (4,301,492) = 55,360,588
At 31 December 2017 RZT—+4F
+-A=1+-H 264,356,160 - (273,602,874) (9,246,714)
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e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &% — =

—tF T A=+ —RALFE

26. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(0

(i)

(iii)

(v)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 3 to the financial statements.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable,
is appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.

Convertible bonds equity reserve

Under HKAS 32, convertible bonds issued are split into
their liability and equity components at initial recognition
by recognising the liability component at its fair value
which is determined using market interest rate for
equivalent non-convertible bonds and attributing to the
equity component the difference between the fair value
of the convertible bonds and the fair value of the liability
component. The liability component is subsequently
carried at amortised cost. The equity component is
recognised in the convertible bonds equity reserve
until the bonds are either converted (in which case it is
transferred to share premium) or the bonds are redeemed
(in which case it is released directly to retained earnings).

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited

th&BR SEER AR A 7

26. fEE =)
(c) RENHEEREM
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(i)

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

26.

27.

28.

29.

RESERVES (Continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(v)  Other reserve

The other reserves represent the difference between the
nominal value of the issued capital of Legend Strategy
Limited, Lai Ying International Limited and Triple Leaf
Limited, the then shareholders of Legend Strategy Limited
and the nominal value of the 135,000,001 shares issued
and allotted to the shareholders of the above companies
by the Company.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2016: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any capital commitments at 31 December
2017 (2016: HK$NIl).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases various hotel premises under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The lease terms of the tenancy
agreements are set out in note 22. The leases have escalation
clauses and renewal rights. The total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as
follows:

26.

27.

28.

29.

EX-1ED)
(c) BENMERBENE)
() HEpbeis

B EERNEERAR - B
AEBERARRMNEERA
RAEBENRE=ZEARARZ
BEERTRAMEHEARQ A M
FHlARREREEITRERE 2
135,000,001 f& J& 1 B 2 [E /Y
Z=F o

HAREE

R-ZE—+F+-_HA=+—H  AKEBEW
EBAMBEARABE( T —REFE ) -

BAESE

RZEBE—tF+-_A=1+—H ' "EFEL
EIRERAEE( T —RF  TBIT) o

REHERSE

AR B 0 B EE T M 3 AT AT RH S 2 8
e - MEH=ZOHMFIINE
22 - MEAHNANA B ME G RER
& o NAIEHER S E AR R RN RIER
ERREERNT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —ET—K
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —FR 13,549,615 15,314,521
In the second to fifth years inclusive ~ E-_ZFRF(BIEEERT) 15,438,978 16,054,412
28,988,593 31,368,933
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30.

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed in note 8 and elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with its related parties during

BB LR 5

B B 95 5 B 8 T L A P B B 0 B
FR P BAEBI - ARENENE T
BHRS -

the year.
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(@) Key management compensation () TEEEAESMHE
Salaries, wages and allowance e TERZERL 3,337,071 5,423,333
Pension obligations BREEE 42,000 57,000
3,379,071 5,480,333
(b) Interest expenses paid to (b) BNFEEEFINGRAR]
China Medical Overseas Limited EopillsNb3 435,781 =

(c) China Medical Overseas Limited has made available a credit
facility up to the amount of HK$20,000,000 to the Company
under substantially the same terms with the borrowings which
the Company may request for drawdown at any time prior to
31 March 2018. As at 31 December 2017, no credit facility is
used.

Legend Strategy International Holdings Group Company Limited
HhE Bl SR EEAR B PR A A

) HEBSEHINEGRAFCEREFLEEE
ABMERIERAARRA RRESER
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 31.

Sure Esteem Limited (“Sure Esteem”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, held 15% equity interest of Shenzhen Yuelai
Inn Company Limited (“Yuelai”), wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. On 25 August 2017, the Group disposed 100% of the
issued share capital of Sure Esteem together with 15% equity
interest of Yuelai at a consideration of HK$8.

The value of the assets and liabilities of Sure Esteem disposed as at
its date of disposal is as follows:

HEREAR

KR A K2 &K B 2 7 Sure Esteem
Limited ([ Sure Esteem | ) 3 & /& 3l 13 3&
BERARAR(HEK]  ARRHZEH
BRAR)IG%EE R —tFNA
—+HH AEBMURESHELHESure
Esteem & %77 A% 7K 100% 32 [F] 15 5 15% A%
T o

Sure Esteem 72 H {1} & H 8§ ) & A Sure
EsteemEE K EBEEENT !

2017
—E—+tF
HK$
BT
Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follows: R HE BEHH & EFE :

Cash and cash equivalents HeERREEEY 7,390
Tax payable FES IR (332,639)
Other payables HAbETFRIR (5,403)
Net liabilities disposal of EEREFE (330,652)
Release of foreign currency translation reserve BRoNE S #E (1,678,206)
Gain on disposal of Sure Esteem & Sure Esteemfyizs 2,008,866
Consideration RE 8

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEERIR ML F5E
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEMRSRESEEY 7,390
Amount of consideration receivable B RESEE 8

The effect of change in the ownership interests of Yuelai on the
equity attributable to owners of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2017 were summarised as follows:

BE-_T—+tF+-_A=1+—HLFE"
iR R BN R AR A G S
HORZB BRI -

2017

—E—tF

HK$

BT

Increase in non-controlling interest FEFE R R 2R I AN (808,645)
Consideration received BURE =
Movement in equity e EE) (808,645)
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE—Z—+F+-—A=+—HILFE

32. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 2. METHELENEESD
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

TR AKEFAREEHELENRE

The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities arising

from financing activities during the year: 23
Total liabilities
Convertible from financing
Borrowings Bonds activities
REEHESE
BE AR ES WEEEEE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT PETT BT
At 1 January 2016 A=E—RF—H—H = = =
Change in cash flows RenEgs - 50,000,000 50,000,000
Non-cash changes HHSEH)
— Interest charged —HMEZH - 5,969,397 5,969,397
— Equity component of — AR E SR E D
the convertible bonds - (4,301,492) (4,301,492)
— Share-based payment —BITRAIARESHEE 2 A
arising from the issue f& 1 BERE 2 43R
of convertible bonds - 1,485,008 1,485,008
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—RFE+-A=+—H
and 1 January 2017 r—F—+tHF—H—H - 53,152,913 53,152,913
Change in cash flows RemE® 16,500,000 (5,409,052) 11,090,948
Non-cash changes RS ED)
— Interest charged —F B H 435,781 8,165,114 8,600,895
— Conversion of convertible —EIRTRRES
bonds - (65,908,975) (565,908,975)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+-_A=+—H 16,935,781 - 16,935,781
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 i E—E—+&+ A =+—H I FE

33. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 33. RMTB AR ZIRE
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are as R-ZF—tF+-_A=1+—8 HEBA7
follows: = =3 (N
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of
registration Issued and ownership
Company name and operation paid up capital interest Principal activities
HmEL/ ERTR BE AR
NRER SRS I BHREX Batk  XEEE
Legend Strategy International Limited The BVI 4 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100% (direct) Investment holding
WERERARAT ety BRIETHOMRERR  100%(ER)  REER
Legend Strategy Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 ordinary shares  100% (indirect) Investment holding and provision
of hotel consultancy services
WEERAR Bh 10,000,000 L EBR 100% (%)  REERREEGEEERRS
Welcome Inn Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share  100% (indirect) Provision of hotel management
services
HREEEEERARAR BB ETERER  100%(EE) REEEERRE
Legend Strategy Management Limited The BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 ~ 100% (indiirect) Rental of hotel premise
Legend Strategy Management Limited HERTHS FRIEFTOURLRER  100%(FE) BEDEEES
Shenzhen Yingde Tourists Co., Ltd. The PRC* HK$8,000,000  100% (indirect) Hotel operations
RYNBHEEBRAR P 800000087  100%(f%)  BELE
Shenzhen Modern Tourists Co., Ltd. The PRC* HK$1,000,000  100% (indirect) Hotel operations and provision of
hotel consultancy services
A EBFFERBRAA R 100000087 100%(@&)  EEEERRMEERRRS
Shenzhen Yuelai Inn Co., Ltd. The PRC* HKD5,000,000 85% (indlirect) Hotel operations
A REEBRAT] H 5,000,000/ 7 8o%(AE) EEEE
Grand China Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share  100% (indirect) General trading and investment
hEEXARAA 0 BT EER 100%(F%) —REFRRE
Net Media Finance Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 ordinary shares ~ 100% (indirect) Drama production
BEEEEEERAR BB 20,000,000 LB 100%(F%)  BEIRYE
* Wholly owned Foreign Enterprise & NI E R
# Partially owned Foreign Enterprise # SNEHA B
The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries which ERFIEAREEFEE  BEXEEBEL
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. FEFENWBARFE o
34. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 34. #tEM TR K
These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue I EGEREBESESEN - \F=H
by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2018. + ARt R
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A FPMBHE

A summary of results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the  AEBBRF AETREFENEEUAREERE
last five financial years is as follows: BERENT -

RESULTS ¥E

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

—E—tF ZT-RF —T-RF —TF —ET-=F

HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS

BT BT ou BT BT

Revenue Wrzs 16,281,691 17,654,630 19,884,379 29,700,841 57,968,906

Loss before tax PRET A0SR (45,836,529)  (100,490,047)  (123,405,540) (60,178,163) (3,293,434)

Income tax credit/(expense) PSR &R,/ (Fx) 408,536 2,200,814 (430,064) 8,634,678 (3,960,343)

Loss for the year FREE (45,427,993) (98,289,233)  (123,835,604) (51,543,485) (7,253,777)
Attributable to: BUR A LM

Owners of the Company AARERA (45,356,200) (98,289,233)  (123,835,604) (51,543,485) (7,253,177)

Non-controlling interests R lid (71,793) - - - -

(45,427,993) (98,289,233)  (123,835,604) (51,543,485) (7,253,777)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING ¥7ZE - & NIEEFIMER

INTERESTS
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tF —ERF —“ET-RF —E—mF —E-=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Total assets BELE 52,369,444 81,090,605 125,659,405 162,087,990 185,630,140
Total liabilities BEEE (30,243,761) (68,263,683) (18,291,715) (27,913,274) (35,160,151)
Non-controlling interests JEE I R (742,983) - - - -

21,382,700 12,826,922 107,367,690 134,174,716 150,469,989

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial i EW TEKEBXIBHRER 2 —20D °
statements.
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